Public Document Pack

Healthier Communities and Adult
Social Care Scrutiny and Policy
Development Committee

Wednesday 24 July 2019 at 4.00 pm

To be held at the Town Hall, Pinstone
Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH

The Press and Public are Welcome to ‘Attend

Membership

Councillor Cate McDonald (Chair), Steve Ayris (Deputy Chair), Sue Alston,
Angela Argenzio, Vic Bowden, Mike Drabble, Jayne Dunn, Adam Hurst,
Talib Hussain, Mark Jones, Martin Phipps, Jackie SaturpGail Smith,

Garry Weatherall and Vacancy

Healthwatch Sheffield
Lucy Davies and Clive Skelton (Observers)

Substitute Members
In accordance with the Constitution, Substitute Members may be provided for the
above Committee Members as and when required.

Sheffield

City Council




PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING

The Healthier Communities and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee exercises an
overview and scrutiny function in respect of the planning, policy development and
monitoring of service performance and related issues together with other general
issues relating to adult and community care services, within the Neighbourhoods
area of Council activity and Adult Education services. It also scrutinises as
appropriate the various local Health Services functions, with particular reference to
those relating to the care of adults.

A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council's website at
www.sheffield.gov.uk. You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance. The
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between
9.00 am and 4.45 pm. on Friday. You may not be allowed to see some reports
because they contain confidential information. These items are usually marked * on
the agenda.

Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to Scrutiny
Committee meetings and recording is allowed under the direction of the Chair.
Please see the website or contact Democratic Services for further information
regarding public questions and petitions and details of the Council’s protocol on
audio/visual recording and photography at council meetings.

Scrutiny Committee meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the
Committee may have to discuss an item in private. If this happens, you will be asked
to leave. Any private items are normally left until last. If you would like to attend the
meeting please report to the First Point Reception desk where you will be directed to
the meeting room.

If you require any further information about this Scrutiny Committee, please
contact Emily Standbrook-Shaw, Policy and Improvement Officer on 0114 27 35065
or email emily.standbrook-shaw@sheffield.gov.uk

FACILITIES

There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the
Town Hall. Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms.

Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the
side to the main Town Hall entrance.


http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/
mailto:email%20emily.standbrook-shaw@sheffield.gov.uk

POLICY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE AGENDA
24 JULY 2019

Order of Business

HEALTHIER COMMUNITIES AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY AND

10.

Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements
Apologies for Absence

Exclusion of Public and Press
To identify items where resolutions may be moved to
exclude the press and public

Declarations of Interest
Members to declare any interests they have in the business
to be considered at the meeting

Minutes of Previous Meeting
To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Committee
held on 20™ March and 15™ May, 2019.

Public Questions and Petitions
To receive any questions or petitions from members of the
public

NHS Sheffield CCG: Improvement Plan
Report of Nicki Doherty, Director of Delivery Care Outside
of Hospital.

Age Related TV Licence Policy
Briefing paper of the Policy and Improvement Officer.

Work Programme 2019/20
Report of the Policy and Improvement Officer.

Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Committee will be held on
Wednesday, 11" September, 2019, at 4.00 p.m., in the
Town Hall.

(Pages 1 - 4)

(Pages 5 -12)

(Pages 13 - 46)

(Pages 47 - 70)

(Pages 71 - 80)



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS

If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its executive or any committee of
the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-
committee of the authority, and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI)
relating to any business that will be considered at the meeting, you must not:

o participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become
aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate
further in any discussion of the business, or

o participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a
member of the public.

You must:

o leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct)

o make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any
meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes
apparent.

o declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28
days, if the DPI is not already registered.

If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.

e Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain,
which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes.

e Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations
(Consolidation) Act 1992.

*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests.

e Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or
a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial
interest) and your council or authority —

under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be

executed; and
which has not been fully discharged.

Page 1 1



e Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner,
have and which is within the area of your council or authority.

e Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil
partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month
or longer.

e Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) —
the landlord is your council or authority; and
the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a
beneficial interest.

e Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in
securities of a body where -

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of
your council or authority; and

(b) either -
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal
value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total
issued share capital of that class.

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity;
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).

You have a personal interest where —

e adecision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s
administrative area, or

e trelates to oris likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but

are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with
whom you have a close association.

Page 2 2



Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to
you previously.

You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take.

In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought. The Monitoring
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’'s Audit and
Standards Committee in relation to a request for dispensation.

Further advice can be obtained from Gillian Duckworth, Director of Legal and
Governance on 0114 2734018 or email gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk.

Page 3 3


mailto:gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL

Healthier Communities and Adult Social Care Scrutiny and Policy Development

Committee

Meeting held 20 March 2019

PRESENT: Councillors Pat Midgley (Chair), Sue Alston (Deputy Chair),

11

2.1

3.1

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

David Barker, Mike Drabble, Adam Hurst, Talib Hussain,
Francyne Johnson, Mike Levery, Martin Phipps, Jackie Satur and
Garry Weatherall

Non-Council Members (Healthwatch Sheffield):-

Margaret Kilner

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Steve Ayris, Chris Rosling-
Josephs and Gail Smith.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

No items were identified where resolutions may be moved to exclude the public
and press.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 27" February, 2019 were
approved as a correct record.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS

Sue Harding referred to a distressing telephone call she had received that day
from someone who was a carer for his family, who stated that continuing
healthcare services had been withdrawn and he was struggling to cope. Ms.
Harding stated that she failed to understand that, when things are supposed to be
getting better, what happens to those people for whom things are getting worse.

The Chair, Councillor Pat Midgley, stated that Continuing Healthcare was an item
on the agenda and hopefully Ms. Harding would hear some answers with regard
to her question during the meeting. She asked Ms. Harding to write to her with
the details of the case she had outlined.

Sheila Manclark, Darnall Dementia Group stated that the Group offered range of

Page 5



Meeting of the Healthier Communities and Adult Social Care Scrutiny and Policy Development

Committee 20.03.2019

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

6.1

6.2

6.3

local services to improve general health and wellbeing and provide support to
those in need. Ms. Hancock said that the Group received funding from the
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), the national lottery and other organisations
but have been informed that City Council funding will cease by the end of June,
2019. In response to a question, Ms. Hancock stated that the Group had received
notification of this in September, 2018.

Councillor Chris Peace, Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care, stated that
she had signed off a letter that day in response to this and although the letter was
not giving the answer that the Group would want to hear, Councillor Peace, along
with the three Ward Councillors in the area who are aware of this matter, were
willing to meet with Ms. Hancock to discuss this. Councillor Peace added that the
Group was definitely on the radar and the way forward was about finding support
and where the Group fits into the scheme of things.

Andy Shallice, Darnall Dementia Group asked whether the City Council would be
maintaining the level of support given to people with dementia as some grants
allocated through the Dementia Support Programme were already falling behind
or being put back and was it the Scrutiny Committee’s intention to revisit this?

The Chair said that an item relating to Dementia Support would be placed on the
Work Programme for 2019/20 Municipal Year, she would ask officers at the start
of that Year to ensure that Dementia Support was added as well as any other
“outstanding issues”. She added that there were many things that the Committee
had wanted to cover, but time hadn’t allowed for them all to be discussed.

The Policy and Improvement Officer advised the Committee of a question sent in
regarding the recent 360 degree assessment of NHS Sheffield CCG. The
Committee agreed that the assessment, and the CCG’s action plan to address the
issues raised through the assessment should be brought to the Committee at the
earliest opportunity in the new municipal year.

PREVENTION UPDATE

The Committee received an update from the relevant Cabinet Members on the
findings of the Prevention Working Group.

Present for this item were Councillor Jim Steinke (Cabinet Member for
Neighbourhoods and Community Safety), Councillor Chris Peace (Cabinet
Member for health and Social Care) and Councillor Jackie Drayton (Cabinet
Member for Children and Families).

Councillor Jim Steinke stated that discussions had taken place regarding
improving the relationship with the voluntary sector, what level of support the City
Council was providing and the level of investment being made. He said that a
report was being prepared on this and would be submitted at a future date.
Councillor Steinke then made reference to locality working and said that
discussions had been held in the south east of the city to look at different ways of
working to make sure that the public are aware of what the Prevention agenda
was all about and to make better use of other premises, not just those in Council

Page 2 of 6
Page 6



Meeting of the Healthier Communities and Adult Social Care Scrutiny and Policy Development

Committee 20.03.2019

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

ownership. Finally, Councillor Steinke said that there needed to be real,
meaningful indicators to measure against, to ensure the ambitions of the
prevention agenda are achieved.

Councillor Chris Peace stated that the recently published NHS long term plan
talks about the same things that Sheffield does with regard to prevention, and
whilst the Government recognises the wider impact on health, planning,
education, housing, social care and economic development, much of the national
NHS focus was on smoking cessation, drug and alcohol services, sexual health.
The City Council along with its partners were already aware of and tackling these
issues as well as health inequalities. Councillor Peace added that the voluntary
sector was very important in terms of prevention and that the developments in
Joint Commissioning with the CCG should bring progress in this area.

Councillor Jackie Drayton stated the prevention had wider issues across all areas
of life, in that help that was given whilst young can help into adulthood. She
referred to all-age disability services and the work around prevention and support
to address the health needs of all.

Members made various comments and asked a number of questions, to which
responses were provided as follows:-

o People who had several problems, which led to them leading very chaotic
lives, all got linked together, there was a need to understand those complex
needs and strip them out to help them deal with those needs. Adults with
complex needs have multiple services to assist them but in the majority of
cases, none of those services were joined up, and it was thought that one
specially-trained person would be better placed to deal with those needs.

o Although there were issues around data sharing, it was considered to be a
good way to find out what services were on offer and the more joined-up
the services are, the better,

o The Health and Wellbeing Board sets the strategy for the city. Public
health, air quality, transport, housing etc., were all directly related to health
and wellbeing. The annual report of the Director of Public Health sets out
ways of how to improve the health outcomes for the whole of the city.

RESOLVED: That the Committee:-

(@ thanks Councillor Jim Steinke (Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods and
Community Safety), Councillor Chris Peace (Cabinet Member for health
and Social Care) and Councillor Jackie Drayton (Cabinet Member for
Children and Families) for their contribution to the meeting;

(b) notes the contents of the report and the findings of the Cabinet Members
and their responses to questions; and

(c) acknowledged that the prevention agenda was a collective issue, noted the
inequalities that exists and that whilst the journey of prevention was vast, it

Page 3 of 6
Page 7



Meeting of the Healthier Communities and Adult Social Care Scrutiny and Policy Development

Committee 20.03.2019

7.1

7.2

7.3

was not about finances, but getting it right.
CONTINUING HEALTHCARE

The Committee received a presentation given by Mandy Philbin (Chief Nurse,
Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), Margaret Kilner (Chief Officer,
Healthwatch) and Phil Holmes (Director of Adult Social Care, Sheffield City
Council) regarding Sheffield’s Continuing Healthcare (CHC) Collaborative Service
Development.

Mandy Philbin stated that she had addressed the Committee, some five or six
months ago, to explain what CHC was. She said that some of the issues around
CHC were still ongoing, but that they have listened to what the public have had to
say and carried out work around patient engagement. She made reference to the
focus on the CHC assessment process and expressed the concerns raised and
the opportunity through the CHC Service Development Plan, to design a single
health and social care CHC assessment to help individuals and their families.
Mandy Philbin referred to two listening sessions that had been held at Birch
Avenue and Woodland View Care Homes, a dedicated Voluntary, Community and
Faith Sector Health and Wellbeing Forum and a small focus group for people who
have experienced the assessment process themselves or have supported
someone through the process. She then outlined the five key areas to be
developed to improve and lead to better care.

Members made various comments and asked a number of questions, to which
responses were provided as follows:-

o An integrated approach by Social Workers and Healthcare Professionals to
deliver a high quality service to meet the needs of those who need it, was
essential. The workforce was the biggest asset and improved joint working
arrangements would put individuals at the centre of the care they required.

o Budgetary savings can be achieved by services working together, more
efficiently, by reducing duplication and removing barriers to better care.

o The Assessment process adhered to the national framework and was
hitting its targets by being fully compliant, and whilst the needs of those
already in the system were understood, a lot of work was still be to done to
inform people about the services and help that was available to them.

o The key priorities for this year for continuing healthcare was workforce
development; pool-funding through joint commissioning and better use of
digital technology to improve services. The CCG would continue to listen
to what people have to say, respond to and try to understand what they are
saying.

o Frontline staff have the right values and are aware of what is needed to
provide the best service possible, but the system needs to change to
achieve this. Service improvement was difficult as there was resistance to
change so a lot of work was still needed to be done.

Page 4 of 6
Page 8



Meeting of the Healthier Communities and Adult Social Care Scrutiny and Policy Development

Committee 20.03.2019

7.4

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

RESOLVED: That the Committee:-

(@ thanks Mandy Philbin (Chief Nurse, Sheffield Clinical Commissioning
Group (CCG), Margaret Kilner (Chief Officer, Healthwatch) and Phil
Holmes (Director of Adult Social Care, Sheffield City Council) for their
contribution to the meeting; and

(b) notes the contents of the presentation made and the responses to
guestions.

IMPROVING QUALITY IN ADULT SOCIAL CARE

Phil Holmes, Director of Adult Services, introduced three members of staff from a
cross-section of the service that provides Adult Social Care in the city. In turn,
they each gave an account of a “story of difference” which was underpinned by
the new “Conversations Count” approach, which was about listening to people
and understanding what matters to them, what a good life could be for them and
their families and by acknowledging their strengths and what could be achieved.
Phil Holmes added that developing this approach had taken time through reducing
bureaucracy and the Service was still trying to reduce it some more. He thanked
the members of staff and added that, they were doing a brilliant job but very often
didn’t get the recognition they deserved.

Also in attendance for this item was Judy Robinson (Chair, Healthwatch
Sheffield).

Phil Holmes then introduced a report which provided an update on Adult Social
Care Performance since the last time this topic was brought before the Committee
in January, 2018. He referred to the key measures of how well care and support
services achieve the outcomes that matter most to people and the data provided
in the report was at council, regional and national level. He then referred to the
measures which were grouped into four domains, which were, ensuring the quality
of life for people with care and support needs; delaying and reducing the need for
care and support; ensuring that people have a positive experience of care and
support and safeguarding adults whose circumstances make them vulnerable and
protecting them from harm. Mr. Holmes said there had been an increase in those
people receiving support whilst still living at home, the previous regime would
have been to place someone into care and this was an improving picture.

Members made various comments and asked a number of questions, to which
responses were provided as follows:-

o Following a question regarding children leaving special schools, it was
suggested that the Director Lifelong Learning, Skills and Communities and
Dawn Shaw (Head of Libraries and Community Services), be invited to
attend a meeting of this Committee to give an update on the work being
carried out to assist young adults with learning disabilities get into
employment.

Page 5 of 6
Page 9



Meeting of the Healthier Communities and Adult Social Care Scrutiny and Policy Development

Committee 20.03.2019

8.5

9.1

The Disabled Facilities Grant which was available from Local Authorities to
pay for essential housing adaptations to help disabled people stay in their
own homes and live an independent life, give people flexibility but more
could still be done. People don’t always want nor need someone coming
into their homes.

There was a need to engage with the recommendations made in the
HealthWatch report into Home Care, and a recognition that there is more
that can be done to improve Home Care in Sheffield. Direct Payments in
Sheffield are lower than the national average, but we need to improve the
way we deliver homecare and make direct payments to people to help
them have more control over their needs.

There was a need to increase support to carers, including raising
awareness of carers organisations amongst staff so they are able to
signpost people.

There is a need to ensure that the system is as easy as possible to
navigate, so that advocacy workers can focus on complex cases and
people who really need their assistance.

A range of initiatives through fairer charging will continue to give support to
people to pay their contributions for the care they receive and prevent them
getting into debt. The Council will introduce a service for those who cannot
manage their money to get help.

RESOLVED: That the Committee:-

(@)

(b)

(€)

thanks Phil Holmes (Director of Adult Social Care), the staff who came and
delivered their “Stories of Difference” for their contribution to the meeting;

notes the contents of the report and the Member and officer comments;
and

thanked HealthWatch for their continuing work in supporting the people of
Sheffield.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

It was noted that the next meeting of the Committee will be held on a date to be
arranged.

Page 10 Page 6 of 6



SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL

Healthier Communities and Adult Social Care Scrutiny and Policy Development

Committee

Meeting held 15 May 2019

PRESENT: Councillors Cate McDonald (Chair), Steve Ayris (Deputy Chair),

11

2.1

3.1

Sue Alston, Angela Argenzio, Vic Bowden, Mike Drabble, Jayne Dunn,
Adam Hurst, Talib Hussain, Mark Jones, Martin Phipps, Jackie Satur,
Gail Smith and Garry Weatherall

Non-Council Members (Healthwatch Sheffield):-

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

No apologies for absence were received.

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR AND DEPUTY CHAIR

RESOLVED: That Councillor Cate McDonald be appointed Chair of the
Committee and Councillor Steve Ayris be appointed Deputy Chair for the
Municipal Year 2019/20.

DATES AND TIMES OF MEETINGS

RESOLVED: That meetings of the Committee be held on a bi-monthly basis, on

dates and times to be determined by the Chair, and as and when required for
called-in items.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

Sg?gg}n%d Report to Healthier Communities and
| Adult Social Care Scrutiny Committee

24 July 2019
Report of: Nicki Doherty, Director of Delivery Care Outside of Hospital
Subject: NHS Sheffield CCG: Improvement Plan

Author of Report: Nicki Doherty, Director of Delivery - Care Outside of Hospital

Summary:

This paper brings the final improvement plan to the Scrutiny Committee to share the
agreed plan within the context of our partnership working. The plan was agreed by
NHS Sheffield CCG’s Governing Body at its 4™ July 2019 meeting and is now being
implemented.

Type of item: The report author should tick the appropriate box
Reviewing of existing policy

Informing the development of new policy
Statutory consultation

Performance / budget monitoring report
Cabinet request for scrutiny

Full Council request for scrutiny

Call-in of Cabinet decision

Briefing paper for the Scrutiny Committee v
Other

The Scrutiny Committee is being asked to:
e Note the improvement plan, the approach to developing it and the intended
mechanisms for monitoring improvement

Background Papers:
List any background documents (e.g. research studies, reports) used to write the
report. Remember that by listing documents people could request a copy.

Category of Report: OPEN (please specify)

Most reports to Scrutiny Committees should be openly available to the public. If a
report is deemed to be ‘closed’, please add: ‘Not for publication because it
contains exempt information under Paragraph xx of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972 (as amended).’

Page 13
l|Page



NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

Report of the Director of Director of Delivery - Care Outside of

Hospital
NHS Sheffield CCG: Improvement Plan

1. Introduction/Context

1.1  In November, 2018 NHS England commissioned an independent assessment
of NHS Sheffield CCG’s leadership and culture as part of their role as our
regulator.

1.2. All CCG staff, CCG Governing Body members, and senior managers from
partner organisations, were offered the opportunity to speak to the assessor
either face to face or over the ‘phone during November, December and
January.

1.3. The report of the independent assessment was accepted by Governing Body
in March 2019. It recognised the CCG has ‘a great number of strengths’ and it
also identified a number of areas for improvement.

1.4. We have taken the report seriously and have spent April, May and June
working with our staff and stakeholders to develop an improvement plan that
addresses the areas of improvement as well as any other identified
opportunities.

1.5. We have worked closely with Mike Potts, the Independent Improvement
Director, and with NHS England throughout the process to ensure that the
actions identified are in line with their expectations in addressing the issues
that have been raised. Mike Potts has played an active role in providing
constructive challenge to ensure that the improvement plan is sufficiently
ambitious and will genuinely address the issues that have been raised by staff
and by stakeholders.

1.6. The improvement plan has been developed within the context of our maturing
Sheffield Accountable Care Partnership (ACP) and South Yorkshire and
Bassetlaw Integrated Care System (ICS) arrangements. The plan also
recognises and supports the direction set out in the Long Term Plan as well
as the Primary Care Network infrastructure and associated leadership that is
being developed.

1.7.  NHS England has reviewed a final draft of our Improvement Plan and
subsequently responded with a letter of support

2. Main body of report, matters for consideration, etc
2.1The improvement plan sets out:

2.1.1 Why we are doing this
2.1.2 Who is responsible

Page 14
2|Page



2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

2.1.3 Our approach to delivery
2.1.4 How we will monitor our success

Staff have played a significant role in developing the plan and helping us to
identify the actions required to address the issues; the content of the
improvement plan has been considerably influenced by their input, as
described within the main document.

Since receiving the report of the Independent 360 Degree Assessment the
Governing Body has:

2.3.1taken time to fully understanding the feedback we have received, to be
confident in the actions we take and to be clear on our role in delivering
the improvement that is required

2.3.2recognised that there are examples of good work and behaviours and
of positive experiences, however we have also seen and heard that this
has not be the experience of all staff. We are sorry that this is the case.

2.3.3agreed that each of its members has a critical role in making sure that
the actions we have identified make a difference and help us become
an organisation where we are among the top ranking organisations for
staff and stakeholder reported satisfaction

As part of developing the plan we have identified risks and ensured these are
captured and managed within the CCG’s Risk Register. One of the principal
risks is ensuring sufficient capacity and the actions to mitigate this are
captured within the Governing Body, Executive Team and Human Resource
Management themes of the plan; these will be an early priority.

Each theme of the plan matches the feedback from the Independent 360
Degree Assessment report; each theme has a nominated Governing Body
and Executive Director sponsor who will have oversight of progress.

The Governing Body and its associated committees will monitor progress and
these arrangements are set out within the improvement plan.

We will assess impact and success of our actions through improvement of our
regular staff and stakeholder surveys and through quarterly monitoring as part
of our agreed audit cycles that we put in place as part of the improvement
plan.

Page 15
3|Page



3.2

3.3

5.1

NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

What does this mean for the people of Sheffield?

NHS Sheffield CCG has a clear set of five organisational objectives. We will
produce a clear narrative that replaces the CCG prospectus (which describes
our strategic objectives) and tells the story of how the commissioning strategy
will impact on the people of Sheffield

These objectives aim to fundamentally change the balance of healthcare
provided in hospital and in the community, so that many more patients receive
care closer to home, when that is the right place for them to receive care.
Doing so by developing new ways of working that are underpinned by a
measured improvement in quality and outcomes, positive action to address
inequalities, affordable and sustainable funding arrangements, and a strong
organisational development approach.

By implementing this improvement plan our potential to deliver each of the
objectives and improving the outcomes for people will be strengthened
through:

3.3.1 A clearer narrative about our overarching commissioning strategy and
supporting strategies that we will implement

3.3.2 A leadership team with the skills, abilities and capacity to support a
consistent way of working that delivers our priorities

3.3.3 A clearer set of programmes linked to our objectives and our strategies,
linked to rigorous business planning arrangements

3.3.4 An organisational programme of development

3.3.5 A clear offer to our partners in our contribution to place and system
partnership working

Recommendation
The Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee is asked to:

¢ Note the improvement plan, the approach to developing it and the
intended mechanisms for monitoring improvement

Page 16
4|Page



NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

Working with you to make Sheffield m
CE A ENEnEn Sheffield

Clinical Commissioning Group

Improvement Plan

NHS Sheffield CCG

Senior Responsible Officer: Lesley Smith, Interim Accountable Officer
July 2019

We have received feedback as an organisation from a variety of sources: an
Independent 360 Assessment, Staff Survey Results, an Internal Comms Survey,
Focus Group Sessions, Listening to Partners, the CQC Local System Review and a
number of HealthWatch Sheffield Reports. This feedback has collectively allowed us
to identify themes in relation to our Leadership and Culture that would benefit from
improvement and we believe will create the necessary conditions to take the
organisation from Good to Outstanding; that will make us an organisation where staff
not just want to come to work but love to come to work. This improvement plan has
been developed in partnership with staff and with external partners to ensure that we
have understood the feedback that we have received and that the actions we have
identified will have the impact required.

Page 17
5|Page



NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

NHS Sheffield CCG: Improvement Plan

About The Improvement Plan

1. What Are We Doing?

1.1 Following an independent review of the Culture,
Values and Leadership of the NHS Sheffield Clinical
Commissioning Group (CCG) we have been able to
triangulate feedback from a range of sources and
stakeholders to identify a series of improvements
that will strengthen the way that we work and
support us to become an outstanding organisation;
a place where staff love to come to work

1.2 We are committed to being an organisation where
staff love to work, where they are empowered and
motivated as the result of the positive culture we
create and the values that we live

1.3 We are committed to partnership working; to our
strategic aims and our strategic direction to achieve
them (prevention, early intervention and the triple
integration of primary and secondary care, mental
and physical health and health and care
commissioning)

1.4 We have established commissioning strategies;
these need to be refreshed, more accessible and
widely and consistently understood

1.5 Through our feedback we have identified that, whilst
many staff do enjoy working for the CCG, there are
a number of examples where things could be better

1.6 There is an opportunity to strengthen our
partnership working and in particular our approach
to co-design, which needs to be supported by
strong and mature system relationships

1.7 For member practices and for the public our
improvements should see greater confidence that
feedback and involvement is being acted on and a
clearer and consistent message about what is being
done; you will see our values and behaviours in the
interactions you have with us

Page 18

Our Vision:

By working together
with patients, public and
partners, we will
improve and transform
the health and wellbeing
of our citizens and
communities across
Sheffield.

We intend to
fundamentally change
the balance of
healthcare provided in
hospital and in the
community, so that
many more patients
receive care closer to
home when that is the
best place for them

Strategic Objectives

1. To work with Sheffield
City Council and other
partner organisations
to reduce health
inequalities in
Sheffield

2. To improve the quality
and equality of
healthcare in Sheffield

3. To improve patient
experience and
access to care

4. To ensure there is a
sustainable, affordable
healthcare system in
Sheffield

5. Organisational
development to
ensure we meet
organisational health
and capability
requirements

6|Page



NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

Our Values:

Empowering

e Ensure communications and
engagement with our
stakeholders is accessible,
meaningful and facilitates
their involvement

Consult with and include
others in decisions that affect
them and demonstrate we
have listened

Speak up if we think
something is not right,
support and encourage
others to do the same
Appreciate and recognize
others qualities and
contributions and work
collaboratively to achieve the
best outcomes

Progressive

e Strive for continuous
improvement in services,
outcomes and patient
experience

e Work collaboratively with all
our partners and
stakeholders

¢ Welcome and learn from
constructive challenge and
feedback

e Use evidence to drive
innovation and improvement

Fair, Honest, Responsive

and Accountable

e Act in a way that is
consistent with values and
principles of the CCG and
the NHS

« Do what we say we are going
to do

o Evaluate, share and learn
from the outcomes of our
decisions

¢ Clearly communicate and
record how decisions are
made

Compassionate and

Caring

o Actively listen to understand
different points of view

¢ Respect and promote
diversity, inclusivity and
address health inequalities

« Be sensitive to the needs,
priorities, abilities and
aspirations of others, valuing
every person as an individual

« Be polite, courteous and
respectful of difference.

1.8

2.2.

2.3.

2.4,

2.5.

2.6.

2.7.

3.1.

3.2.

This improvement plan sets out a series of transactional
as well as behavioural improvements that together we
hope will improve staff and partner experience of
working with us

Who Is Responsible?

. Itis important to acknowledge that the Governing Body

and the Executive Team fully accept responsibility for
the improvements required and have committed to
ensuring that the improvement plan is delivered. As part
of this we are asking our staff and our partners to
continue to share their feedback on how things are going
so that we are able to assess improvement

Our actions for developing the improvement plan will be
signed off by our Governing Body

Our Chair and Interim Accountable Officer are ultimately
responsible for implementing the plan

To help us move forward as an organisation, we have
appointed Mike Potts, a former NHS chief executive, as
an Independent Development Director. Mike will work
part-time until October supporting both the development
and the monitoring of the improvement plan

Each of the improvement themes has an identified
Governing Body and Executive Director Sponsor to
oversee progress and help address and barriers. And
each of the actions has an identified executive and
operational lead

Ultimately our success for implementing the plan will be
measured by improvement in the responses in the staff
and stakeholder annual surveys as well as through the
cycle of staff involvement and feedback that the
improvement plan commits to

If you have any questions please contact:
SHECCG.Comms@nhs.net

Our Commitment

We have taken time as a Governing Body to fully
understanding the feedback we have received, to be
confident in the actions we take and to be clear on our
role in delivering the improvement that is required

We recognise that there are examples of good work and
behaviours and of positive experiences, however we
have also seen and heard that this has not

Page 19
7|Page


mailto:SHECCG.Comms@nhs.net

3.3.

NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

been the experience of all staff; we are sorry that this is the case.

We believe that each of us has a critical role in making sure that the actions we have
identified make a difference and help us become an organisation where we are
among the top ranking organisations for staff and stakeholder reported satisfaction.

4. How Will We Communicate Our Progress With You?

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4,

4.5.

We will provide regular progress reports to the Governing Body, which be received in
public and will be included in the papers published via the website

With the agreement of the Governing Body monitoring of delivery and oversight of
how the improvement plan is improving the way that we work and our delivery on
commissioning intentions will sit with the established Improvement Steering Group
(See Appendix 1 for Terms of Reference)

We will provide staff with an update on progress at our regular staff briefings and
members via each of the four Locality Councils, led by our Governing Body GPs

We will keep partners updated via our established routes of communication

As part of our delivery promise we are committed to continuing the engagement of
staff at key stages of development, for example, using face to face sessions,
workshops, surveys, learning lunches.

5. Approach

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

Gs GB
March 2019 July 2019

Development ofimprovement plan

* Triaguiated with staff
working atthe CCG survey, 121 comments -

* Whatneeds to be = One to one meetings and meetings 5 « Drop-in sessions with
improved hear about what the » lndesend?ﬂana:sb staff to see and

issues and solutions coarn.uou by staf e comment on the plan

are =DIOBAN 2 eaONS wall Al » Development session
with Gl

« Share with partners

* Whats good about

1o sensecheck analsis

Staff engagement
workshops

. T N A

We established an Improvement Plan Steering Group chaired by a Governing Body
Lay Member, Chris Neild, and with made up of staff forum representatives, Governing
Body GP, the Independent Development Director and the Executive Director
coordinating the improvement plan.

We spent time during March, April and May to listen to staff, member practices and
stakeholders and to triangulate their views with the external 360 report

A focus group of our staff created a thematic analysis (see example of in section 5), to
help describe what we had heard from all the sources of feedback. This was tested out
with staff through drop in sessions, displays in staff areas and through the
Improvement Plan Steering Group

Page 20
8|Page



NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

5.4. Any feedback that was specific to individuals has been picked up directly with them

5.5. The thematic analysis, alongside the 360 report, has been used to create the actions
within the improvement plan; these have been tested out with staff in drop in sessions,
with the steering group, with Governing Body members and with partners through their

executive meetings

6. Themes Identified

6.1. As part of the drop in sessions we held staff were asked to consider the CCG’s values
and rate where they were visible. This is represented in the diagram below, with the
green dots representing being positive visibility

CE G EOnEE

Evatsate. share and learm Som
e Gt 04 O Gata

. /
FAIR, HONEST, RESPONSIVE
AND ACCOUNTABLE

I how we make and implement Gec

wOrRIng emironmant with

SSIONATE AND CARING
on the needs of our poputation: creating |
collengues

6.2. A focus group, consisting of staff involved in the Improvement Plan Steering Group,
undertook a qualitative analysis of the feedback received via staff drop in sessions,
interactive feedback in the staff areas, direct feedback to Nicki Doherty or Mike Potts,

and the staff survey

Fig 1. Example of thematic analysis

'//Deﬂulm meaking

= |Lack of clarity 3boul how and whan
dacisions ars mads. Somalmeas poar
dacisions ars mada.

= ILack of undarstanding of g owamanca
stucura

= Fallure of dracions 10 Mrvoive and use
xparisa of stafl

= Dackslans ars undarminad and nat
awnad, kaading 10 poor CUICaMmas

= Disconnact Detwaan dracians makig
he decisians and ha s1afl with
nowiadga and day-10-day
axparianca

= [Disagraamants betwasn dirnackars
MTyEac1 an S1a

= Fuiuna warickanca Jacisians {2g ool

S13T— offand commans fom

diraciors aboul polaniial stafl
'\\ala'lqesca.rsesameh'

“Decisions undenmined by

“Pigase Can our DINCIowS no
make decisions based o
whar wall make tham Jook
Qoo BT JO0H 3T The wWiner
[Bam and the ImpPacr It has on
the pecple DElous™

IC5) are notl communicaiad wall 10

“A5 e eVIEWw STEIeS The
probiems STem from che quality of
the lsadarship ream. Fiaase

S00ress this IS508 MrsT Defors
JooKInG a1 mincr chings.™

Leadership- themes from staff feedback

s

= Parcapuion of SIET afhaw Ma 350
220030k N3s be=n racaivad oy e
SaNiar 1=2am

» Laadars naad 101562 rasponsiminty
for the pratiams Tt fawe baan
antag

= Cancann thal focus is baing deflaciad
fram the kaadarship kssuas kantiiad
Iniha 350 fo wider kssues, such as
hose kianiiiad In the staff sunvey'.

The ShoITCOMInGS I0enchad in The reviaw are raiu)

INSTEST O SCHNOWIBOIDING this Thers S6emMs o be 5
STrATEQY O IYING [0 Make the Whole Workfres and
ShIFE rBSPORSIDINTY FOr SOring things Mors widsly
across the organisacion. ™

oo g WiTh the

This needs i be

Page 21

Exscutive Team

Gf SERICI Managemeant and the GOVeming Sody and
they shouwlt be Cwned by them. ITis disappoinThg tha

“The Droblams aopear
i
Jsaciarship of the CCE.

adoressed in oroer io

reso/ve the SITWanon ™

Human Rescurcas
Managamant

Partnershipa and
Public Enqgagamsant

‘Capacity

DCeraciars are ndal avaliabia 1o stalt

Diraciars cowaring largs araas of
wark

Diraciors afian da Not know winat iha
S131T in Thair f2amss do and Tharafara
40 ullis2 thalr sidiis and knowlkadg 2
Appropriasy

Poar COMIMANICIEoN batwasn
diraciars and staft

= S=mor t23m N0t visie —sspaclaly b

S13iT an e ground Soar
Fasis chaolic

~Clinical DIrBCIOrS ROT
arpund anough m offar
IBS0BEhID Tor Work

Programmas - they are
00 Dusy.™

“Dwie [0 ShOUT |rm
CONIIECTS We are Now
hoUT of team Jeadars.
This will ROT GRIY
IMpPact on the SIrBss
and work load of the
r8am leaclers buT wall
als0 Bscalare Jown T
the Rursing and
business ream”™

~

= Sanior t23m dossnt st and
ampowsar middla managameam

= Fabura o afiactvaly dslagaiz and
ampowsar S13iT10 dalivar

= Comfcing messages fomlasders
3t kasds 1o canfusian

= Sanse of disconnact Detwesn leaders
and st

= Maora Bmeafy, opan, and diffaram
fonms of CoOmIMmUNcation ars naadad.

= Undiaar winal the rala of Clnkcal

= STLIBon with madical dirscior naads
12 ba rasoivad —Datiar
COMEMAUNECIBaN 'With s13iT ks naadad.

= INEsCratan of sankar kaadars.
= Lack of exparianca 31 exaculive lawal

= Pagpia baing hasd 10 3ccoun and
chasangad. Somea positve
about s131T baing haid 10 accoum
mana an had Ranpanad praviously.
‘Soma nag atvs teadoack SDoUt e
mannar in which siaifars chaliang ad,
and about s13fT not baiing haid 1o
account.

Many exampies of good lzadarship
within the CCG, Inchuding fram the
Ceaputy Ciracions. MALTS k-

racagrisad 35 @ gradt raning

N\ /

9|Page



NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

7. Governance

7.1. Corporate Risk Management (Corporate Risk Register)

The corporate risk register has been updated to reflect risks associated with the
implementation plan and these will be monitored as part of the regular risk
management process within the CCG.

7.2. Resource Implications

As part of our planning for 2019/20 funding has been allocated to support
organisational development requirements and it is anticipated that these should be
sufficient to implement the improvement plan.

Page 22
10|Page



NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

8. The Improvement Plan

Action
Source
D- 360
S - Staff

P - Partners

What needs to be done?

What will the impact be?

11

Hospital

cz-ahe

Governing Body and Executive Director Sponsors: Chris Neigand Director of Delivery, Care Outside of

Put in place clear
commissioning
strategies to
support the
Sheffield vision,
with a clear flow
from vision to
delivery

D,S,P

Reconfirm our vision and its alignment to both the Long
Term Plan and the Shaping Sheffield Plan (also see action
5.1)

Prepare a refreshed Commissioning Strategy (including
Primary and Community Services) developed jointly with
Accountable Care Partnership (ACP) partners that is
consistent with the Long Term Plan, the Health and
Wellbeing Strategy, the Shaping Sheffield Plan, Joint
Strategic Needs Assessment and wider public and
stakeholder engagement

Strengthen the commissioning arrangements in
partnership with the Local Authority to provide a joint
commissioning mechanism for the Accountable Care
Partnership that supports the agreed priority areas:
Mental Health, SEND and Frailty

Produce a clear narrative that replaces the CCG
prospectus (description of our strategic objectives) and
tells the story of how the commissioning strategy will
impact on the people of Sheffield

Develop strong Communication and Engagement Plan
that underpins the strategic aims, strategic direction and
supporting strategies to ensure consistent and clear
messages to staff, partners and public; our vision and
strategy will be consistently articulated and understood
by all

- Improve the effectiveness as local system leader
Source: Annual Stakeholder Survey

- More staff who feel the CCG has a clear vision for the future

- More staff who feel part of the CCG's vision for the future
- More staff feel that communication between senior
managers and staff is effective

Source: Staff Survey

Operational Lead
Timeframe
Resource
Implications

Accountable
Officer/ Deputy
Director of
Communications
, Engagement
and Equality

Oct-19

None

Board Assurance
Mechanism

Governing
Body

Linked to
3.1
appointing
the
Accountable
Officer

Director of
Delivery, Care
Outside of
Hospital/
Deputy Director,
Care Outside of
Hospital

Dec-19

None

Governing
Body

In Progress

Director of
Commissioning
and
Performance/
Integration and
Better Care Fund
Programmes
Lead

Dec-19

None

Governing
Body

In Progress

Accountable
Officer/ Deputy
Director of
Communications
, Engagement
and Equality

Dec-19

None

Governing
Body

In Progress

Accountable
Officer/ Deputy
Director of
Communications
, Engagement
and Equality

Dec-19

None

SPEEEC

Linked to
previous
actions

1l1|Page




NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

Acti e [
ion
o} o 2 S €
Source T_lv g § 2 g E
=]
D- 360 What needs to be done? What will the impact be? s - § S ﬁ 2
= [*}
S - Staff IS 'g o g- ° g
3 ©
P - Partners 8' = a
o Di f
w 8 irector o
g = Articulate an agreed South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw B
2 ‘s . L Commissioning .
S o Integrated Care System (ICS) joint Commissioning Governing
o T . . and Dec-19 |None In Progress
@\ e i Strategy that clearly describes what will be done at . Body
s 5 Put in place clear " " . . - Improve the effectiveness as local system leader Performance/
g A Place" i.e. Sheffield and what will be done at ICS level .
9 o commissioning Source: Annual Stakeholder Survey Sandie Buchan
g
z 88 strategies to
g %’ E‘ 1 | sueportsouth b5 p
£33 ’ Yorkshire and T - More staff who feel the CCG has a clear vision for the future
& =
:><_,’ & Bassetlaw - More staff who feel part of the CCG's vision for the future
b '§ Integrated Care o - More staff feel that communication between senior Acc.ountable
g g System Priorities [;eveloz a stronghCommumcatlon and Engagdement PIand managers and staff is effective Officer/ D:puty Linked to
that underpins the strategic aims, strategic direction an . Directoro i
22 - P - g _ g Source: Staff Survey T Dec-19 |None SPEEEC previous
w 2 supporting strategies to ensure consistent and clear Communications actions
c T i
€ 5 messages to staff, partners and public , Engagement
% % and Equality
oz

vz 9bed

12|Page



NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

Acti '_g 9
ion 5 ° o 2 g e
Source & £ g2 5 £
Action D- 360 What needs to be done? What will the impact be? 3 1‘.—', § S 2 2
. o £ 9 o - 9
S - Staff > = ©E & =
P - Partners <l 2
Director of Governin,
Appointment of new Governing Body Chair . Oct-19 |None & In Progress
Finance Body
Complete the planned review of the Governing Body
constitution, including supporting committees. Test how i .
. € supPP 8 X Director of Governing
the Governing Body seeks assurance about staff, patient R May-19 |None Complete
. . - Finance Body
and stakeholder satisfaction and that the organisations
] strategic objectives are being met
2
& Ensure that the Governing Body has a programme of
5 continuous development. Early priorities should include:
= - Shaping what the CCGs unique contribution will be to
: the developing ICS
% - reviewing effective leadership and governance of the
S organisation
g - contribution to system leadership across ACP and ICS Linked to 2.1
L
= - reviewing the model of clinical leadership and link to and 3.1;
5 o ) . Accountable . -
- . Clinical Directors and the the Primary Care Network . Possible . appointing
T 5 . L . . Officer/ Deputy Governing _
s @ Reaffirm the role Clinical Directors - Improve the effectiveness as local system leader X Oct-19 |external the Chair
‘D S . o ’ . K Director of HR Body
= 21 of the Governing D.S - reviewing the effectiveness of member practice Source: Annual Stakeholder Survey and OD support and
s g "“|Body now and ’ engagement Accountable
3 ‘8’ future - confirming Governing Body Member roles and links to |- More staff know who the senior managers are Officer
J 'E CCG Teams and partners and ensure sufficient time Source: Staff Survey
.g allocated to effectively establish these links (links to 2.2)
§ - understanding the organisational development
E required to support any associated change
2 - strengthening the use of Governing Body Strategic
2 Development sessions
3
0 Director of
'g Share and communicate the reaffirmed role of Governing Finance/ Deputy Linked to
Z Body and any changes with staff, partners and public; Director of oct-19  |None Governing [previous
include a description of background skills and expertise Communications Body actions in
that each member offers , Engagement 2.1
and Equality
. ) Accountable Linked to
Develop an induction programme to support new Officer/ Deput Governin revious
members in understanding both their individual and X puty Mar-20 |None g P R X
collective roles on the Governing Bod Director of HR Body actionsin
§ Sodv and OD 21

13|Page



NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

Action
Source
D- 360
S - Staff

P - Partners

Action What needs to be done? What will the impact be?

)
c
2
=
[+
=
=
E

xec/ Operational
Timeframe
Resource
Board Assurance
Mechanism

Governing Body
Governing Body and Executive Director Sponsor: Dr Terry Hudsen and Chief

Nurse

2.2

Strengthen the
interaction of
Governing Body
with the staff and
partners

D,S

Aligned to our visions and strategy, establish a map of
critical relationships and how or where those
relationships are secured; ensuring that Governing Body
members are proactively interacting with staff, partners
and other key stakeholders (e.g. attending practice visits,
locality meetings)

Introduce ways in which Governing Body members
interact more with staff e.g. board to floor days, learning
lunches and team briefs with Governing Body members,
staff encouraged attend Governing Body meetings and
feedback to staff etc.

Papers to Governing Body to be presented by a Clinical
Director/Lead or relevant member of staff. Staff coached
and supported in how to effectively engage with
Governing Body in formal meetings

Picture display of Governing Body members on ground
and first floors of the CCG

- Improve the effectiveness of working relationship with the
CCG

- Improve the effectiveness of the CCG as a local system
leader

- CCGis perceived to work more collaboratively with system
partners to improve the future health of the population
across the whole system

Source: Annual Stakeholder Survey

- More staff know who the senior managers are

- More staff feel that communication between senior
managers and staff is effective

Source: Staff Survey

Accountable
Officer/ Deputy
Director of
Communications
, Engagement
and Equality

Dec-19

None

Governing
Body

Linked to 1.1
and 1.2

Accountable
Officer/ Deputy
Director of
Communications
, Engagement
and Equality

Oct-19

None

Governing
Body

In Progress

Director of
Finance/
Committee
Secretary & PA to
Director of
Finance

Jul-19

None

Governing
Body

In Progress

Director of
Finance/
Corporate
Services Risk and
Governance
Manager

Jul-19

Cost of
producing

Governing
Body

In Progress

14|Page




NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

Action
Source
D- 360
S - Staff

P - Partners

Action What needs to be done? What will the impact be?

)
<
2
=
[+
=
=
E

xec/ Operational
Timeframe
Resource
Board Assurance
Mechanism

Governing Body
Governing Body and Executive Director Sponsor: Dr Terry

Hudsen and Chief Nurse

23

Building on the
established
values and
behaviours
develop an
approach that
demonstrates
their application
in everything that
we do

D,S,P

Reconfirm that current agreed values and behaviours are
still valid and if so turn them into a more accessible
statement of intent

Prepare a clear communication plan that reaffirms these
values and behaviours and how they will become
embedded into how the organisation does business - this
might include a value of the month to promote how
these are being lived and breathed within the
organisation

Lead and embed the values as part of a comprehensive
organisational development session (see action 4.1)

- Improve the effectiveness of working relationship with the
CCG
Source: Annual Stakeholder Survey

- More staff are aware of the organisation's statement of
values

- More staff feel managers demonstrate values at work

- More staff feel other colleagues demonstrate values at
work

Source: Staff Survey

Accountable Linked to

Officer/ Deputy 3.1

Director ?f . 0ct-19  |None Governing |appointing

Communications Body the

, Engagement Accountable

and Equality Officer

Accountable Linked to

Officer/ Deputy 3.1;

Director ?f . oct19  |None Governing [appointing

Communications Body the

, Engagement Accountable

and Equality Officer
Linked to

Accountable 3.1;

Officer/ Deputy Governing [appointing

X Mar-20 |None

Director of HR Body the

and OD Accountable
Officer

15|Page




NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

Action ® 8
& o o S E
Source = g o ,g 5 E
D- 360 What needs to be done? What will the impact be? E - § 8 ﬁ 2
- — [}
S-St © £ g 2 B2
aff ] = ©E T =
P - Partners 8- 2
Governin,
Appoint an interim Accountable Officer Chair Jun-19  |None Body & Complete
°
c
S Accountable
o Agree a set of shared corporate objectives with named } .
IS . . . Officer/ Deputy Governing
) Executive Director leads; shared with staff and X Sep-19 [None In Progress
s stakeholders Director of HR Body
E and OD
€ Linked to
£ f Accountable Possible 3.1;
E g N Confirm sufficient Undertake a skills audit to identify whether there are any |- Improve the effectiveness of the CCG as a local system Officer/ Deputy 0ct-19  |external Governing |appointing
E §. g executive team gaps in the skills of the executive team. (linked to 4.1) leader Director of HR t Body the
E 5 3'0' capacity and the Source: Annual Stakeholder Survey and OD suppo Accountable
@ . )
P:.P g 2 31 right D.S P Officer
§ a -E capabilities/skills r - More staff feel their team has a set of shared objectives Linked to
v g 3 to meet the Review effectiveness of the Executive Team and current |- More staff know who the senior managers are Accountable possible 3.5
Q . . .
£ § g needs of the management arrangements; are roles and - More staff feel that communication between senior Officer/ Deputy 0ct-19 |external Governing [appointing
ﬁ organisation responsibilities clear and appropriately apportioned. managers and staff is effective Director of HR support Body the
QJ =4 Clarify who are members of the Executive Team.to 5.1  |Source: Staff Survey and OD pp Accountable
©
> Officer
Q3
D i Accountable
NE Better utilise the skills of the Deputy Directors and Officer/ Director .
= . Governing
mg empower them to act and play a more central role in the of Dec-19 |None Bod In Progress
3 CCGs management team Commissioning v
and Performance

16|Page



6Z.|ta ﬁﬁd’nent Team

Governing Body and Executive Director Sponsor: Anthea Morris and Accountable Officer

3.2

Action

Re-establish and
enforce the CCG
Operating Model;
establishing a
robust
commissioning
methodology

Action
Source
D- 360
S - Staff

P - Partners

D,s

What needs to be done?

Embed a clear business planning process, including
alignment of resource to priorities and an audit of
attendance at meetings

Reaffirm and enforce PMO framework with Executive
Director Leadership

A single ACP improvement methodology e.g.
microsystems

Review of effectiveness of SMT meeting as well as the
productive meeting structure

Implement new standards for meetings to ensure
consistency in quality of papers

Implement audit cycle for monitoring effectiveness of
supporting processes and policies and how they support
commissioning better outcomes and the delivery of our
strategies

NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

What will the impact be?

- Improve the effectiveness of the CCG in improving health
outcomes for its population

- Improve the effectiveness of the CCG in reducing health
inequalities

- Improve the effectiveness of the CCG in improving quality
of local health services

- Improve the effectiveness of the CCGin delivering value
for money

Source: Annual Stakeholder Survey

- More staff feel their role makes a difference to
patients/service users

- Fewer staff feel they have unrealistic time pressures

- Fewer staff feel unwell as the result of work related stress
Source: Staff Survey

® o
g e g £
% £ 85 £ 5
° © =] 2 'c
[ &= 3 ® ]
=3 ] 2L < 5
o £ 22 - 3
= = £ g =
9 = o
] 3]
Director of
— Audit and
Commissioning Integrated
and Aug-19 |PMO Capacity 8 In Progress
Governance
Performance/ Committee
Sandie Buchan
Director of
! - Audit and
Commissioning
.. |Integrated
and Sep-19 [PMO Capacity In Progress
Governance
Performance/ Committee
Sandie Buchan
Director of
. Auditand
Commissioning Cost of Integrated
and Mar-20 . 8 In Progress
training Governance
Performance/ X
. Committee
Sandie Buchan
Accountable Linked to
Officer /Business Audit and 3.1;
Manager to the .. |Integrated [appointing
Sep-19 [PMO Capacit
Chair & P pacity Governance |the
Accountable Committee |Accountable
Officer Officer
Director of
Commissioning
and
Performance/ Governance
Business Apr-19 |None Sub Complete
Manager to the Committee
Chair &
Accountable
Officer
Director of
- Audit and
Commissioning Integrated
and Mar-20 [None 8 In Progress
Governance
Performance/ X
Committee

Sandie Buchan

17|Page




NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

Action
Source
D- 360
S - Staff

P - Partners

Action What needs to be done?

What will the impact be?

08 E@QB dnagement Team

Governing Body and Executive Director Sponsor: Anthea Morris and Accountable Officer

Exec/ Operational
Timeframe
Resource
Implications

Board Assurance
Mechanism

Immediately address the gap in children's commissionin Governin
. 'y o gap & Chief Nurse May-19 [None & Complete
by appointing a clinical lead Body
Possible
Establish a clear understanding of the statutory roles and .
o i i R Chief Nurse/ resource Governance
responsibilities of the Local Authority and CCGin relation X L
. \ . . Head of Oct-19  |implications [Sub In Progress
to children's services and how these work harmoniously . . . - - .
X - Improve the effectiveness of working relationship with the [Commissioning to cover Committee
Review the together
- CCG secondment
model of clinical R -
leadershin to - Improve the effectiveness of the CCG as a local system Linked to
ensure it :)s fit for Greater clarity and understanding about the role of leader Possible 3.1
33 purpose both D,S,P clinical leadership and the relationship between Clinical |- CCGis perceived to work more collaboratively with system [Chair/ Medical 0ct-19 |external Governing |appointing
now and in the Directors and the GPs on the Governing Body and their partners to improve the future health of the population Director support Body the
emerging ACP collective offer to the wider system (linked to 2.1) across the whole system PP Accountable
EIng Source: Annual Stakeholder Survey Officer
and ICS landscape -
Linked to
Accountable 3.1;
Organisational development plan to support clinical Officer/ Deputy J1an-20  INone Governing [appointing
leadership (see action 4.1) Director of HR Body the
and OD Accountable
Officer
An external review of the primary care team capabilities
and capacity has already been complete (October 2018),
i i i Director of
t!’\ese actions need to be fully implemented and given - Improve the effectiveness of working relationship with the R Aug-19 |None In Progress
- time to be embedded; supported by clear Delivery, Care .
Ensure sufficient o . . CCG R Primary Care
. communications to member practices to ensure clarity on Outside of N
leadership and Source: Annual Stakeholder Survey R Commissioni
3.4 . D,P roles and how to engage Hospital/ Deputy
capacity for the c ot m toor T Tembed Director. Care ng
primary care team omplete recruitmen o' primary team an f—zm € n.ew - More staff feel that there are enough staff in the o Jun-19 |None Committee |Complete
structure to create capacity and more effective working - L Outside of
- organisation for them to be able to do their job properly R
Agree a programme of development and support with Hospital
R X Source: Staff Survey
NHSE to strengthen the leadership across the primary Aug-19 |None In Progress

care team

18|

Page




NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

Action
Source
D- 360
S - Staff

P - Partners

Action What needs to be done?

What will the impact be?

Board Assurance
Mechanism

-[ 8 eﬁgd Management Team

Governing Body and Executive Director Sponsor: Anthea Morris and Accountable Officer

Exec/ Operational
Timeframe
Resource
Implications

The values and behaviours will be visible in everything Possible Governin
we do; staff will be encouraged to let us know when they Jan-20 [external Body & Linked to 2.3
are hOt - - Improve the effectiveness of working relationship with the support
Instigate a programme of corporate leadership ccG
developmel.wt firstly fortltle executive team anfj thento | Improve the effectiveness of the CCG as a local system
cover the wider leadership team e.g. deputy directors. leader
This will include: . - CCGis perceived to work more collaboratively with system
- How to work effectively as a team X .
. partners to improve the future health of the population
- How to lead by example and live and breath the
Lead by Example: isati dval d behavi across the whole system Accountable Linked
v ple: organisa |o.n agreedva Lfes ?n € .awours Source: Annual Stakeholder Survey Officer/ Deputy inkedto
3.5 [valuesand D,S,P |- Empowering the organisation and its staff Director of HR possible 3.3
Behaviours - i i inti
H,°W to.protect time to meeF, talk, reflectand agree a | More staff are aware of the organisation's statement of and OD Mar-20 |external Governing - |appointing
united view on how to effectively lead and support the values support Body the
organisation . - More staff feel managers demonstrate values at work Acc?untable
- Understanding each others strengths and weaknesses Officer
X X - More staff feel other colleagues demonstrate values at
and how to support each other as an effective Executive work
Team. . - Fewer staff experiencing bullying from managers or work
- Embed a corporate culture across all directorates
includi i colleagues over the last 12 months
fncluding nu.rsmg X Source: Staff Survey
- How the wider leadership team support and work
effectively as a coherent team
Director of
Commissionin,
- More staff feel able to make suggestions to improve the and &
work of their team/department
) Staff able to drop in to see a director (independent of the /dep . . Performance/ X
Executive . . - More staff feel secure about raising concerns about clinical . Governing
3.6 ) ) S directorate they below to) to discuss thoughts, feedback R Business Jul-19  |None In Progress
Director Surgeries R practice Body
and ask any questions . . Manager to the
- More staff who report an experience of bullying if it Chair &
happens
Soz:)ce' Staff Surve Accountable
’ v Officer

19|Page




NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

Action
Source
D- 360 What needs to be done?
S - Staff
P - Partners

What will the impact be?

)
c
2
=
[+
=
=
E

Operational Lead
Timeframe
Resource
Board Assurance
Mechanism

Review the robustness of the existing HR and Accountable
= Organisational Development Strategies (which include Officer/ Deputy Governing
© . R h . . Jan-20 [None In Progress
& Talent Management and Coaching) to test whether they |- More staff feel that the organisation acts fairly with regard |Director of HR
'g continue to be fit for purpose to career progression/promotion and OD
é Agreed values and behaviours to be embedded in \—’vl\;l:)krii;taff who feel there are opportunities for flexible g::ioc:r:;?)belzmy Soverning
£ recruitment and to be lived by all staff promoting strong . . . X Jan-20 [None Linked to 2.3
S working relationships internally and externally - More staff able to make improvements happen in their area|Director of HR Body
s of work and OD
:§ Create a culture which - More staff who look forward to going to work
§ - embraces protected time to think, to innovate and to - Fewer staff experiencing bullying from managers or work
'_!:5’ Instigate an cultivate relationships (which includes a clear colleagues over the last 12 months
2 = organisational understanding of the ICS/ACP) - More staff who report discussing values of the organisation
nE: g development - engages staff using appropriate channels as part of their appraisal
g :?: programme that - supports staff to understand their purpose and the - More staff who feel their appraisal helped improve how
g z8 develops a clear difference we make to the Sheffield population they do their job, gave clear objectives for their work and
S S5 €CG identit - empowers staff in their day to day roles to realise their |leftthem feeling valued by the organisation
§ 2 g 4.1 within th v D,S,P potential and maximise talent across the city - More staff who feel supported by theirimmediate line
é g E context of tehe - encourages quality feedback to each othe.r N . manager . N N ' Linked to
:d s Integrated Care - encourages staff to take personal responsibility for their|- More staff who feel supported in receiving training learning Accountable 31
s ¢ System and the own performance and growth and supports the or development offi 5 . . Lo
;_€ ‘3 v achievement of their own goals, the team and - More staff who feel they have an opportunity to use their X icer/ Deputy Jan-20 [None overning  jappointing
NN Accountable Care o ) ) Director of HR Body the
= Partnership organisation through an effective Performance skills - . and 0D Accountable
g Development Review scheme - More staff who feel satisfied with the amount of Officer
§ - is transparent and inclusive, which defines expectations |responsibility that they are given
] of managers at all levels and provide appropriate training |- More staff always know what their work responsibilities are
-ué and development which includes training in effective - More staff feel they get the respect they deserve from
o people and HR management colleagues at work
§ - champions Wellbeing; championed by representative |- More staff feel that communication between senior
o staff from each area of the organisations and is supported|managers and staff is effective
= by managers, MHFA's, Occupational Health and the - More staff feel senior managers involve them in important
% Employee Assistance Programme decisions
o - promotes trust enabling all staff to make informed and |Source: Staff Survey
innovative decisions

20|Page



NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

Action
Source
D- 360 What needs to be done? What will the impact be?
S - Staff
P - Partners

)
c
2
=
[+
=
=
E

Board Assurance
Mechanism

Operational Lead
Timeframe
Resource

- A tabl
6 & Enable confidence in the reasonable application of cc'oun avle .
= & olicies and procedures to support staff in their workin Officer/ Deputy Jan-20 |None Governing In Progress
§. 'c Instigate an :Oiv P PP & Director of HR Body E
‘s’ = 'g organisational °s and OD
T g devel t
BE ¢ rogramme tht Enable good qualitytraiing and mentoring upport orter! pep Governi
a nable good quality training and mentoring suppo icer/ Depu overnin
% o S [ : gl | . 8 4 v & gsupp X puty Jan-20 [None & In Progress
S 25 g evelops a clear available for all staff Director of HR Body
3 6 CCG identit
g g g g a1 . Y D,s,P Please see above 2nd OD
3598 within the Accountable
s 286 ¢ context of the Undertake a skills audit to understand better utilise the Officer/ Deputy Governing .
X ® © X ) o X X Jan-20 [None Linked to 3.1
£ > 5 Integrated Care skills and expertise within the CCG (linked to 3.1) Director of HR Body
ER % System and the and OD
= 1]
T .‘é" g Accountable Care Chief Nurse/
c . . . .
£ S Partnership A separate organisational programme to support the Head of Governing
9 5 Oct-19 |None In Progress
3 S Continuing Health Care staff CHC/Head of Body E
© =2 Contracts SHSC

cc abed

21|Page



ieniigement

=
i

Hun'ar Pescuice
Governing Body and Executive Director Sponsor: Mandy Forrest and Director of Commissioning and Performance

Ensure strong and
effective HR
advise and
support to the
ccG

43

Policies and
Procedures that
Support and
Promote Good
Human Resource
Management

Action
Source
D- 360
S - Staff

P - Partners

D,S

What needs to be done?

Executive responsibility to be placed under the
Accountable Officer; this will need to be reviewed as part
of action 3.1

Consider options for strengthening the HR support to the
organisation to include access to specialist advise where
appropriate. Ensure that there is a strong HR voice that is
empowered to stop the process where agreed policy or
procedure is not being followed

Implement audit cycle for monitoring effectiveness of
policies in how they support staff; linked to the current
process for review of policies with staff forum and staff
side

Bring forward review of whistleblowing policy with
particular focus on Freedom to Speak Up Guardian

Proactive review of HR casework e.g.
Tribunals/Appeals/Grievances etc. on their conclusion to
reflect the learning back into the organisation in the
spirit of continuous improvement

Ensure robust process for PDRs for all staff that informs
the CCG's training and development plan; consider
embedding 360 review as part of the annual PDR process

Review whether existing policies support public facing
staff in managing interactions and any additional policy
or procedure that is required

Ensure all staff have attended the training programme for
line managers that supports them in their roles, e.g.
writing job descriptions and person specifications that
attract the right candidates

NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

What will the impact be?

- More staff feel that the organisation acts fairly with regard
to career progression/promotion

- More staff who feel there are opportunities for flexible
working

- More staff who report discussing values of the organisation
as part of their appraisal

- More staff who feel their appraisal helped improve how
they do their job, gave clear objectives for their work and
left them feeling valued by the organisation

- More staff who feel supported in receiving training learning
or development

- More staff feel that senior managers act on staff feedback

- Fewer staff experiencing bullying from patients/service
users, relatives or members of the public during the last 12
months

Source: Staff Survey

More staff feel that bullying and harassment cases are dealt
with well
Source: HR Policy Audit

° o
] ) g
= g g5 5
] © =] 2 €
s 5 2 8 g g
EEF ¢
8§ ]
Accountable Aor-19  |None Governing e
Officer P Body P
Accountable .
) Possible
Officer/ Deputy Jan-20 [additional In Progress
Director of HR )
and OD capacity
Linked to
Accountable Audit and 3.1;
O.fficer/ Deputy Dec-19 |None Integrated [appointing
Director of HR Governance |the
and OD Committee |Accountable
Officer
Linked to
Accountable 3.1;
Offlcer/ Deputy 0ct-19  |None appointing
Director of HR the
and OD Accountable
Officer
Accountable Audit and
Officer/ Deputy Integrated
Director of HR Oct-19  |None Governance In Progress
and OD Committee
Accountable
Officer/ Deputy |\ 50 [None In Progress
Director of HR
and OD
Accountable
gr::;:)/r E?E‘:ty Jan-20 [None In Progress
and OD
Accountable
Officer/ Deputy |\ 20 [None In Progress
Director of HR
and OD

22| Page




NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

Action
Source
D- 360 What needs to be done? What will the impact be?
S - Staff
P - Partners

)
<
2
=
[+
=
°a
E

Board Assurance
Mechanism

Operational Lead
Timeframe
Resource

§ Linked to
e Accountable i Audit and 3.1;
£ . . . . ' Possible o
8 Actively promote flexible working to support work life Officer/ Deputy Mar-20 lexternal Integrated [appointing
o balance Director of HR Governance |the
o support .
T and OD Committee |Accountable
E}, Officer
‘£ Linked to
g Accountable Audit and 3.1;
E Officer/ Deput Integrated |appointin
g Refresh the Staff Benefits Scheme ) / Deputy Nov-19 [None € PP &
5 Director of HR Governance [the
o
D .
S - More staff feel the CCG takes positive action on health and and 0 Committee Acc.ountable
5 . Officer
8 wellbeing
£ £ L . . - More staff who feel there are opportunities for flexible Director of Likely capital
(=) Agree a digital strategy that supports agile working across . o
£ o - .. working Commissioning and recurrent
[TA partner organisations, allows sufficient hot desks and . .
& A X X X R - Fewer staff experiencing MSK problems as the result of and cost Governing
c & Promoting health associated hardware in 722 that supports agile working. o Dec-19 In Progress
8 9 X - : ) work activities Performance/ Interdepend |Body
S £ and wellbeing at Consider an external review of how effective the i R
o 2 X ) R X - More staff who feel the CCG has made adequate Deputy Director ency with ICS
c S 4.4 |workanda S infrastructure is to support agile working A ) .
38 healthy work life adjustments to enable them to carry out their work of IT delivery
¥ v - Fewer staff reporting work related stress during the last 12 -
2z 2 balance Linked to
38 months Accountable 3.1
£ 2 i - More staff who feel they have adequate materials, supplies i} X o
2 © Ensure HR and Freedom to Speak Up Director and . X Officer/ Deputy Governing [appointing
Ta Governing Body Sponsors known by all staff and equipment to do their work Director of HR Dec-19 None Bod the
5 8 VP Y - More staff feel the CCG takes positive action on health and Y
& Ibei and OD Accountable
£ welibeing Officer
=} Source Staff Survey -
Q Linked to
z Accountable Auditand  [3.1;
§ Refresh Induction Pack to include e.g. strategic Officer/ Deput Integrated  |appointin
] objectives, strategies, learning and development Director of E|R v Dec-19 |None Govirnance tﬁ: g
T P
opportunities
E PP and OD Committee |Accountable
3 Officer
;’ Accountable Auditand
= Named leads within teams to support wellbeing and Officer/ Deputy Integrated
] . ) Mar-20 |None In Progress
2 learning and development Director of HR Governance
[C] and OD Committee

23|Page



NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

Action
Source
D- 360
S - Staff

P - Partners

What needs to be done? What will the impact be?

)
c
2
=
©
=
=
E

Board Assurance
Mechanism

Human Resource Management
Governing Body and Executive Director Sponsor: Mandy Forrest and

Director of Commissioning and Performance

4.4

Promoting health
and wellbeing at
work and a
healthy work life
balance

Ensure that there is in place an up to date and easily
accessible Staff Finder Directory

Actively promote activities that support health and
wellbeing (e.g. FIKA, Walk Don't Email)

Establish a pool of "Staff Buddies" - people who can
support staff during challenges e.g. starting new role,
performance issues, returning to work etc.

A listening and Learning Organisation: establish a regular
staff engagement and feedback programme

Staff Engagement: ensure that when staff are asked to
engage on particular topics there is broad representation
of staff groups and that all are given the opportunity to
take part

- More staff feel the CCG takes positive action on health and
wellbeing

- More staff who feel there are opportunities for flexible
working

- Fewer staff experiencing MSK problems as the result of
work activities

- More staff who feel the CCG has made adequate
adjustments to enable them to carry out their work

- Fewer staff reporting work related stress during the last 12
months

- More staff who feel they have adequate materials, supplies
and equipment to do their work

- More staff feel the CCG takes positive action on health and
wellbeing

Source Staff Survey

Operational Lead
Timeframe
Resource

Accountable Audit and
Officer/ Deputy Integrated
Dec-19 |None In progress
Director of HR Governance et
and OD Committee
Accountable
Officer/ Deputy Audit and
Director of Integrated
' L Oct-19 [None 8r In progress
Communications Governance
, Engagement Committee
and Equality
Accountable Audit and
Officer/ Deputy Integrated
Dec-19 |None In Progress
Director of HR Governance g
and OD Committee
Accountable . Audit and
. Possible
Officer/ Deputy Integrated
X Jan-20 [external In Progress
Director of HR support Governance
and OD PP Committee
Audit and
Accountable Inteerated
Officer/ Deputy Oct-19 |None 8 In Progress
. Governance
Chief Nurse .
Committee

24| Page




Partne Ag ala ﬁﬁiagement

Governing Body and Executive Director Sponsor : Prof. Mark Gamsu and Director of Finance

5.1

Shaping up the
CCG's offer in the
future Integrated

Care System and
Accountable Care
Partnership
arrangements

Action
Source
D- 360
S - Staff

P - Partners

D,s,P

What needs to be done?

Instigate ACP and ICS staff briefings, where appropriate
with wider ACP or ICS representation

In conjunction with ACP partners agree a statement of
functions, skills and relationships that we each provide,
with a clear understanding of how provision, partnership
and commissioning functions connect (link to 4.1)

Develop a strong organisation development approach
across partners that strengthens and develops our
collective skills and developing roles, including the
Primary Care Networks

In conjunction with ACP partners actively promote and
demonstrate the shared values and behaviours that we
have jointly committed to

Agree with partners in the ICS and ACP "Corporate Days":
For Place, For ICS and for each Organisation

Streamline executive leadership responsibility across
partners in the ACP

As part of the business planning, undertake an audit of
meetings within the CCG and across the ICS and ACP to
ensure effective use of time and resource and potentially
reduce the number of meetings staff are required to
attend

NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

What will the impact be?

- Improve the effectiveness of working relationship with the
CCG

- Improve the effectiveness of the CCG as a local system
leader

- The CCG is perceived to work more collaboratively with
system partners to improve the future health of the
population across the whole system

- When commissioning/decommissioning services the CCG is
perceived to better: involve the right individuals and
organisations; ask the right questions at the right time;
engage effectively with patients and public; demonstrate it
has considered views of patients and public

Source: Annual Stakeholder Survey

- More staff know who the senior managers are
Source: Staff Survey

Operational Lead

Timeframe

Resource
Implications

Board Assurance
Mechanism

Accountable
Officer/ Deputy
Director ?f . Jul-19  |None Governing In Progress
Communications Body
, Engagement
and Equality
Accountable
glf:;:;/r [;fe’:':ty Jul-19 |None (B;;’ij'"g Linked to 4.1
and OD
Linked to
Accountable i 3.1;
Officer/ Deputy Possible Governance appointing
) Jan-20 |external Sub
Director of HR . the
and OD support Committee Accountable
Officer
Accountable
CD)T:;:;{- Z:E‘:ty Mar-20 [None :Z;j rning In Progress
and OD
Accountable Linked to
Officer/ Business 3.1;
MarTagerto the 1u-19  |None Governing [appointing
Chair & Body the
Accountable Accountable
Officer Officer
Accountable ;I T(ed to
Officer/ Director Governing a;);;ointing
of Mar-20 |None
N Body the
Commissioning
and Performance Accountable
Officer
Director of
Commissioning Governing
and Jan-20 |None Body Linked to 3.2
Performance/
Sandie Buchan

25|Page



Partnerships and Public Engagement
Governing Body and Executive Director Sponsor :

Prof. Mark Gamsu and Director of Finance

Single
Commissioning/
Strategic Planning

Action
Source
D- 360
S - Staff

P - Partners

What needs to be done?

Develop an agreed strategic planning process that all

5.2 P

Cycle for the partners understand contribute to and promote

Accountable Care

Partnership

Demonstrating X i

. . Report from the Strategic Patient Engagement,
Listening and A i .
. ) Experience and Equality Committee (SPEEEC) to

Action in relation Governing Body to cover the actions taken and agreed b

5.3 [to patientand D,S,P e Y g t

public
involvement and
engagement

commissioners in response to the engagement that has
been undertaken and the feedback that has been
received

NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

What will the impact be?

- Improve the effectiveness of working relationship with the
CCG

- Improve the effectiveness of the CCG as a local system
leader

- The CCGis perceived to work more collaboratively with
system partners to improve the future health of the
population across the whole system

- When commissioning/decommissioning services the CCG is
perceived to better: involve the right individuals and
organisations; ask the right questions at the right time;
engage effectively with patients and public; demonstrate it
has considered views of patients and public

Source: Annual Stakeholder Survey

- More staff know who the senior managers are

Operational Lead

Director of
Commissioning
and
Performance/
Jennie Milner

Timeframe

Dec-19

2
8o
5%
o 8
3:
= g

None

Board Assurance
Mechanism

Primary Care
Commissioni
ng
Committee

In Progress

Director of
Delivery, Care
Outside of
Hospital/ Deputy
Director of
Communications
, Engagement
and Equality

Jul-19

None

SPEEEC

In Progress

g¢ obed

26 |

Page




NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019
9. Appendix 1

Suggestions Action Plan Ref.

Strategy
In developing this year’s operational plan ( 2019/2020) the team should ensure clearer links to the place-based plan and the ICS strategy 1.1,1.2,3.2
The Governing Body should oversee the development of a CCG strategy and implementation plan that clearly identifies the CCG role with 1.1,1.2,3.2

priorities and milestones in key programme areas — all aligned to the place-based plan and the ICS strategy.

The executive team should develop a clear narrative about the unique role and contribution of the CCG — and test this with partners 1.1,1.2,5.1

Governing Body

Once the on-going investigation is finalised the GB should undertake a review of how it was handled and embed the outcomes in the on- 4.3

gog development plan for the GB.
Q

[d{an)
MBPmbers of the GB should consider how they can be more visible to staff, in all parts of the CCG, and ensure they receive intelligence and 2.2

fegdlback from a wide variety of sources
(o]

The GB needs to identify a small number of ambitious priorities and seek detailed strategies from the leadership team to underpin delivery 1.1,1.2,21
of the CCG’s high level vision

The GB should review the skills within its executive team and consider whether these are the right combination to lead the CCG forward 3.1
The GB should address the perception that it is not supportive of those presenting at its meetings 2.1,2.3
The GB needs to strengthen the children and young people’s voice through training and support to all members, especially those with lead 2.1,3.3

responsibilities, and ensure strategies are aligned to those of the Council

27| Page



NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

Executive Team

In this time of change (e.g. in relation to the ICS) the executive team should ensure that commissioning processes and decision-making 3.2,5.1,5.2
structures for transformation programmes are clear to all.
The executive team needs to spend more time agreeing a shared position on key issues which are aligned to strategic intentions and 3.1,3.2
communicate these consistently e.g. by emphasising alignment to the place-based plan.
Where programmes are not delivering, there needs to be a collaborative consideration about the root cause and how this can best be 3.2
unblocked.
The executive team needs to consider how their actions are perceived by staff and seek to emphasise organisational values in a deliberate 3.1,35
and consistent way.

O
Th@Team should build on the good work to improve staff communication to create a strategic organisational development plan which starts 4.1
witH values and addresses future ICS developments. This should link to individual director’s appraisals and personal development plans as
we_&as GB development.

o
Any sustained disagreement between individual directors needs urgent resolution, with external support if needed. 3.1,35
The executive team should determine the root cause of stakeholder concerns about strategy and a strategic approach and address these. Done through

triangulation process

The team needs to understand the specific issues within the nursing directorate and draw up an organisation-wide plan, under the 3.5
leadership of the Chief Nurse with a Governing Body sponsor.
A review needs to be undertaken of leadership and capacity relating to primary and community care commissioning-aligned to the proposed 3.4
strategy
The role of the clinical directors should be formally reviewed to ensure they are able to achieve their potential within formal structures. 33

Renewed efforts should be made to recruit a clinical director to lead the children and young people’s programme area.

28|Page




NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan | Final Version | July 2019

Human Resources Management

The Governing Body should review the executive management structure for HR to order to provide assurance to staff of its independence.

4.2

The Governing Body and Executive Team should create opportunities to listen to ‘soft’ feedback from HR.

2.1,41,4.2,43

The current programmes of staff communication and staff support should be continued and developed in the context of the proposed value- 4.1,4.4

based organisational development plan.

In the short term, consideration should be given to developing a more visibly value-based approach to staff management and engagement. 4.1,4.4

On-going attention needs to be paid to alighment with organisational values in recruitment, performance management and grievance. 4.3

processes

Even more support needs to be given to staff pursuing bullying and harassment cases, especially those in junior roles. 4.1,4.3
iLY)

Bagtnerships and Public Engagement

THR executive team should work with partners to establish a process to thoroughly understand the issues associated with joint 5.1,5.2

cdlﬁmissioning and new models of strategic commissioning and agree a plan to progress them.

The CCG should not recommence the review and consultation on urgent care without further discussion with partners and full completion of 3.2,5.1,5.2

the initial gateway in the NHSE Service Change Assurance Process.

The SPEEC should review engagement with relatives and patients regarding CHC processes, seeking views from a variety of sources, 4.1,5.3

including the relatives’ support group directly. If possible it should work jointly with the local authority to improve engagement with this
stakeholder group, underpinned by integrated care pathways.

29| Page




10. Appendix Il

Working with you to make Sheffield m
H TIHIIER
| Sheffield

Clinical Commissioning Group

Terms of Reference

Name of Committee/Group | Improvement Plan Steering Group

Type of Committee/Group | Group

1. | Purpose of Committee/Group

The Improvement Plan Steering Group has been established to provide
internal assurance, challenge and oversight of the successful
development and implementation of the improvement plan.

In developing the plan the Steering Group will ensure that appropriate
processes are adopted to deliver robust staff/stakeholder involvement
and engagement, identification of resources including financial
implications and that risks are identified and mitigated.

As the Improvement Plan is implemented the steering group will have
oversight of implementation and ensure that the intended impact of the
actions is being achieved.

Ensure that the Improvement Plan is developed and agreed in line with
the timescale agreed with NNS England.

This is a time limited group for 6 months in the first instance.

2. | Authority/Accountability

The Governing Body resolved to establish a Group to be known as the
Improvement Plan Steering Group. These terms of reference set out the
membership, remit, responsibilities and reporting arrangements of the
Group.

The Steering Group will operate at all times in accordance with the
Governing Body’s Standing Orders and Prime Financial Policies. It will
ensure that it conducts its business in accordance with the principles of
good governance and the Nolan seven principles of public life.

The Steering Group will support communication of progress to ensure
involvement and engagement of staff; this will be done via agreed
mechanisms to ensure that there are clear messages and two-way
communication. Members will work with the nominated communications
lead, our Deputy Director of Communications, Engagement and Equality.

30
Page 42



The Steering Group will be accountable to the Governing Body and report
regularly to them on progress of delivery against the agreed objectives as
detailed in the terms of reference.

L Directorate
Communications
!

]

!

| m
I/
/
I
I
! ,7
Governing Steering i
Body Group Vs staff
\
\ briefings

\

N Stakeholder
engagement

Objectives of Committee/Group

e For management and staff to co -produce an improvement plan that
builds trust and confidence that the plan will address and deliver the
issues that have been identified

Provide oversight of the improvement plan to ensure key themes
are robust and deliverable and are clearly linked back to, and reflect,
staff and wider stakeholder feedback

e To provide timely, appropriate, sensitive, consistent and coordinated
stakeholder communications/engagement

e |dentify resource implications (including financial investment) and
ensure appropriate governance arrangements are in place and
adhered to.

e To provide assurance and oversight of a communication plan and its
delivery, both internally and externally.

e To ensure the actions in the action plan are SMART (Specific;
Measurable; Achievable; Realistic; Timely)

e Mitigation of risks associated with delivery are monitored via the
corporate risk register

e The Programme Management Office will monitor delivery of the plan
in accordance with the CCG’s normal business management
processes.

e To review the role of the Group in October 2019.

31
Page 43




4. | Membership

e Lay Member — Systems and Leadership (Chair)
e Accountable Officer (Executive Senior Responsible Officer)

e Director of Delivery — Care Outside of Hospital / Executive Lead for
coordination and delivery of the Improvement Plan

e Governing Body GP

¢ Clinical Director

e Independent Director of Development, Co-opted member
e CHC Nurse

e Staff Forum Members (core membership to be agreed for
consistency)

e Programme Management Office representative
e Communications representative

e Human Resources representative

o Staff Side Co-ordinator

e Finance Representative

5. | Attendees
Note: Attendees should be referred to by title not name. Minute taker
should be stated either as member or in attendance.

The Steering Group will have the flexibility to invite others to attend their
meetings for specific agenda items as felt appropriate. These people
should be referred to as in attendance for that specific item. Minute taker
should be in attendance

6. | Quorum

GP Board Member/Lay Member Systems & Leadership (Chair)/Director of
Delivery — Care Outside of Hospital/Independent Improvement Director. For
Quoracy the Steering Group requires 2 of these members present.

2 x Staff Forum members

1 x other member

| 7. | Frequency and Notice of Meetings

32
Page 44



Note: Include frequency of meetings and agenda and papers

Every 2 weeks until the end of May, then Monthly thereafter

Minutes and Reporting Arrangements

Note: Detail Governing Body/Committee/Group/Individual reporting to. Also
state which of minutes/action points/assurance to be given to which
Governing Body/Committee/Group.

Minutes will be taken by Business Manager to Chair and Accountable
Officer

Meeting Effectiveness Review

As part of the Governing Body’s annual performance review process, the
Improvement Plan Steering Group shall review its collective performance.

10.

Review to be conducted by Committee/Group Chair

Date Committee/Group | 18.3.2019

established
Terms of Reference to 26.4.2020
be reviewed
Date of last review 10.4.2019

33
Page 45




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

Shefﬁeld Briefing for Healthier Communities and Adult

City Council Social Care Scrutiny & Policy Development
: Committee
24 July 2019
Subject: Age-related TV Licence Policy

Author of Briefing: Emily Standbrook-Shaw, Policy and Improvement Officer
Emily.standbrook-shaw@sheffield.gov.uk
0114 27 35065

Summary:

The BBC's recent decision to stop funding free TV licences for all over 75s from
June 2020 has been controversial and high profile.

This briefing provides the Committee with information on why the decision has
been made, why it has drawn criticism, and an overview of how the changes
are likely to affect Sheffield, to enable the Committee to discuss the changes
and identify any areas it wishes to investigate further or make
recommendations on.

Type of item: The report author should tick the appropriate box
Reviewing of existing policy
Informing the development of new policy
Statutory consultation
Performance / budget monitoring report
Cabinet request for scrutiny
Full Council request for scrutiny
Call-in of Cabinet decision
Briefing paper for the Scrutiny Committee X
Other

The Scrutiny Committee is being asked to:

. discuss the changes to free TV licences for over 75s
. identify any issues for further investigation or recommendations to
decision makers within the Council or external organisations.

Category of Report: OPEN

Page 47



11

1.2

1.3

Introduction

In 2015, the UK Government decided to stop funding free TV licences for
those aged over 75. The UK Parliament then gave the BBC the
responsibility to decide on the future of the concession from June 2020.
Following a consultation, the BBC has decided that from June 2020, any
household with someone aged over 75 who receives Pension Credit will
be eligible for a free TV licence funded by the BBC.

This decision has been controversial, and a campaign and petition led by
Age UK asking that Government takes back responsibility for funding
free TV licences for everyone over 75 currently has 591,152 signatures.
This is over the threshold to qualify for a Parliamentary debate.

The Committee is asked to consider and discuss the changes, and
determine whether it wishes to make any recommendations to decision
makers within the Council, or in external organisations.

Changes to Age-Related TV Licence Policy

The executive summary of the BBC’s decision document on age-related
TV Licence policy is attached at appendix 1, and sets out how the BBC
came to its decision. The full version is available here. The key points
are:

e Continuing the current concession would cost £745m a year by
2021/22, which is around 18% of the BBC’s spend. Finding the
resources to fund this would require closure of services equivalent to
BBC Two, BBC Four, the BBC News Channel, the BBC Scotland
Channel, Radio 5Live, 5live Sports Extra, and a number of local radio
stations. The BBC Board felt that these closures would damage the
BBC for everyone.

e The BBC Board felt that the fairest option is to establish a new
scheme to focus on the poorest older pensioners, by using the
Government’'s own measure of pensioner poverty — Pension Credit.
They deemed this the fairest option to help the poorest pensioners,
and for all licence fee payers as this decision will avoid substantial
cuts to BBC programmes and services up to 2021/22.

e The Board recognises that this decision will mean changes for
around 4.6 million households, consisting of 2 groups:

o0 1.5 million households could be eligible for a free TV licence,
of which 900,000 currently receive Pension Credit.

o0 3.75 million households will need to pay for a TV licence,
although this figure would reduce if more over 75s took up
Pension Credit.

e Resources will have to be found to fund the new concession — which
will cost £250m a year by 2021/22.

e The BBC Board considers it important that the BBC and TV Licensing
take steps to support people to make the transition to the new system
simple.

Page,48



2.1

3.1

3.2

Critics have expressed their concern over the proposals. The key issues
Age UK is highlighting in its campaign are:

e The Government, not the BBC, should be responsible for funding free
TV licences and making what are, in effect, tax and benefit decisions.

e The importance of retaining the free TV licence for people aged over
75 because many have low disposable incomes, high levels of ill
health or disability and are particularly reliant on television for
companionship, entertainment, news and information.

e Concern over linking the free TV licence to Pension Credit because:

0 this would exclude those with the very lowest incomes — those
who are eligible for Pension Credit but have not claimed it — 41%
of over 75s who should be getting the benefit are missing out.

o0 It creates an unfair position between those who get the benefit
and those with an income just above the threshold so do not.

0 A means tested system involves added complexity and older
people may not feel comfortable sharing personal information,
such as being in receipt of a means-tested benefit, with the BBC

Age UK'’s response to the BBC consultation is attached as Appendix 2,
and a recent press release at Appendix 3.

What does this mean for the people of Sheffield?

According to the Office for National Statistics and the Department for
Work and Pensions, there are an estimated 43,819 over 75s in Sheffield,
10,096 of who currently claim Pension Credit. A breakdown of this, and
other related indicators, by neighbourhood, has been circulated as
background information.

Pension Credit is a benefit administered by the Department for Work and
Pensions, and people can claim Pension Credit if they have reached
State Pension age and have a weekly income of less than £167.75 for
single people, and £255.25 for a couple.

The licence fee changes will mean that from 2020, households in receipt
of Pension Credit will be able to continue to claim a free TV licence.
Those that aren’t will have to pay for a licence, which currently costs
£154.50 a year.

According to Department of Work and Pensions data, 41% of people
who are eligible for pension credit do not claim it. Information on what
this means in terms of numbers of people in Sheffield is not available,
but we can assume that there will be a significant number of people who
are eligible but don’t currently claim.

Page 49



4.1

Increasing uptake of Pension Credit will be the key factor in mitigating
the impact of the Licence Fee changes. There are a range of services
and organisations in the city that help older people understand and claim
the benefits they are entitled to — Community Support Workers, Age UK,
Carers Centre, Alzheimers Society etc as well as VCF groups working in
communities. The Council also funds Citizens Advice through Grant Aid
to give information and advice to Sheffield people.

Recommendation
The Committee is asked to:
e discuss the changes to free TV licences for over 75s

¢ identify any issues for further investigation or recommendations to
decision makers within the Council or external organisations.

Page,50



BlB|C

AGE-RELATED TV LICENCE POLICY

DECISION DOCUMENT

Page 51



Executive Summary

The BBC Board’s decision

In 2015, the UK Government decided to stop funding free TV licences for those aged over 75.
The UK Parliament then gave the BBC the responsibility under the Digital Economy Act 2017
to decide on the future of that concession from June 2020.

From June 2020, any concession would be funded by the BBC, not by the Government. The
money would have to come from the BBC’s budget that goes to pay for programmes and
services.

The BBC’s decision would have an impact on all licence fee payers, as continuing the current
concession would make the BBC significantly worse for everyone, as it would cost £745m a
year by 2021/22. This is equivalent to around 18% of the BBC’s spend on services today. By
the end of the next decade, this would rise to over £1 billion a year.

The BBC consulted on a range of options. The BBC Board fully recognises the feedback from
the consultation that there is no easy solution that everyone agrees.

The Board considered the issues very carefully. It has had detailed discussions about the
advantages and disadvantages of a range of options using three criteria of fairness, financial
impact and feasibility.

The Board also complied with the public sector equality duty by considering the statutory
equality needs throughout the decision-making process.

The BBC Board has decided that the fairest decision is to establish a new scheme to focus on
the poorest older pensioners. Any household with someone aged over 75 who receives
Pension Credit’ will be eligible for a free TV licence funded by the BBC. The Board believes this
is the right policy to implement across the UK from June 2020.

The BBC Board believes that this is the fairest option to help the poorest pensioners; it
protects those most in need.

It is also the fairest option for all licence fee payers as this decision will avoid substantial cuts
to BBC programmes and services up to 2021/22.

The BBC Board is not making a judgment about poverty. Instead, the BBC Board has decided
to use the UK Government’s own framework. The Government sets and controls Pension
Credit, not the BBC. The BBC Board considers that over 1.5 million households could get free
TV licences if a member of that household is over 75 and receives Pension Credit.

The new scheme will cost the BBC around £250 million a year by 2021/22, depending on take-
up of the scheme and implementation costs.

T Those in receipt of either part of Pension Credit - Guarantee Credit or Savings Credit (or both).

Page 52



Finding the resources to meet this cost of around 6% of the BBC’s budget will mean difficult
choices for the BBC, as this money could have been used for BBC programmes and services.
Despite the financial impact on the BBC, the Board believes this decision is the right one.

In reaching its decision the Board compared this proposal to copying the current concession.
The impact of copying would require unprecedented closures of services, including BBC Two,
BBC Four, the BBC News Channel, the BBC Scotland channel, Radio 5live and 5live Sports
Extra, and a number of local radio stations.

The Board believes these closures would profoundly damage the BBC for everyone, especially
older people who use the BBC the most. They would have a severe impact on the BBC’s ability
to deliver its mission to serve all audiences. These cuts would damage the creative economy,
particularly in the nations and regions and make the BBC much worse value for money for
those who do pay for their TV licence.

This is likely to lead some households to choose not to buy a TV licence, reducing BBC income
even more. In the Board’s view this could potentially risk a downward spiral of the BBC having
to cut more services, which could reduce TV licences still further.

The estimated financial impact of the scheme the Board has decided on is that the BBC will be
able to keep overall funding for its UK public services broadly in line with general inflation up
to 2021/22, though still substantially reduced compared to 2010.

The acute financial pressures on the BBC are growing in a very competitive, global
marketplace where costs in key areas are rising much faster than general inflation. The Board
believes this is going to be a significant factor in judgements about the level of the licence fee
when it next comes up for review in 2021/22.

The BBC Board considers it is vital that the BBC remains independent of Government.

In the discharge of its legal responsibilities under the Digital Economy Act, the Board has
taken what it is satisfied is the right decision, on the basis of all the material it considered.

The BBC Board recognises the strong feelings expressed during the consultation about the
Government taking back responsibility and funding the existing concession. This is not a
matter that the BBC can resolve.

The BBC Board’s view is that it is a matter for Government whether, in the light of the BBC
Board’s decision, Government would now wish to pay the additional costs to ensure that all
over 75s could continue to receive a free TV licence. Or it could take back responsibility for the
over-75s concession in its entirety, and pay for it in full. The Board is satisfied that, in
summary, the BBC cannot afford to do this without making the BBC substantially worse for
audiences. It has done all it can reasonably to protect the poorest over 75s. The Board has
made its decision, in the discharge of its statutory functions.

The Board believes strongly that there needs to be a much more transparent public debate
about funding settlements in future, rather than a process behind closed doors which does not

Page 53



involve the public. The BBC will begin to set out its case and consult with audiences in the run-
up to the licence fee funding negotiations in 2021/22.

The BBC Board recognises that its decision will now mean changes for around 4.6 million
households, consisting of two groups. Around 1.5m of those could be eligible for a free TV
licence funded by the BBC, of which 900,000 currently receive Pension Credit. We estimate
that up to 3.75 million households will need to pay although this figure would reduce if more
people aged over 75 took up Pension Credit.

The Board considers it important that the BBC and TV Licensing take steps to support people
to make this transition simple. This is a significant change for everyone over 75.

So far as implementation is concerned, the BBC Board has decided that those aged over 75
that receive Pension Credit will be able to apply for a free TV licence using a self-verification
scheme. And those households that will now have to pay for their TV licence will be able to pay
by small instalments.

Page 54



w
“ageuk

Love later life

Consultation Response

Age UK’s response to the BBC public consultation —
Age-related TV licence policy

February 2019 Age UK ref: 4518

All rights reserved. Third parties may only reproduce this paper or parts of it for academic,
educational or research purposes or where the prior consent of Age UK has been obtained
for influencing or developing policy and practice.

sally.west@ageuk.org.uk

Age UK

Tavis House

1-6 Tavistock Square

London WC1H 9NA

T 0800 169 80 80 F 020 3033 1000

E policy@ageuk.org.uk
www.ageuk.org.uk

Age UK is a charitable company limited by guarantee and registered in England (registered charity number
1128267 and registered company number 6825798). The registered address is Tavis House
1-6 Tavistock Square, London WC1H 9NA.

Page 55


http://www.ageuk.org.uk/

About this consultation

Since November 2000, households that include someone aged 75 or over have been
entitled to a free TV licence. In 2015 the Government announced that it would no longer
continue to pay for the free licence and government funding is being abolished in stages.
From 2020 responsibility for any age-related concession rests with the BBC. The
consultation sets out the BBC'’s initial views and asks for responses to help the BBC Board
decide what, if any, concession should operate from June 2020.

Key points

Age UK believes that the free TV licence for over 75s should remain. Removing or limiting
the concession would have a major impact on the lives of many of our oldest citizens,
particularly the most vulnerable who are living with some combination of disability, low
income and loneliness.

The Government should take back responsibility for funding the free licence. It is not
appropriate for the BBC, as a public sector broadcaster, to make decisions about who
should receive concessions or to be responsible for funding what is, in effect, part of our
welfare system.

Nearly three in ten (29%) of people aged 75+ live in poverty or only just above the poverty
line. However, it’s not just about income. More than half of over 75s are disabled, so are
likely to have lower disposable incomes after meeting essential disability-related costs
including paying for care and support, higher heating bills, extra laundry or having to use
taxis.

People aged 75+ are more likely than younger people to live alone which, combined with
the high levels of ill health and disability, can make them isolated and dependent on TV for
companionship, entertainment, news and information.

We are very concerned that any changes could result in some older people giving up their
television even if it is very important to them, while others may cut back on heating and
other essential costs in order to buy a licence.

We do not believe that the alternative options are acceptable. The analysis commissioned
by the BBC shows that a 50% payment or raising the age above 75 would result in lower
income older households losing a higher proportion of their income than richer older
households. Means-testing is not a solution either. Linking the concession to those in
receipt of Pension Credit would miss the very poorest — those who are entitled to help but

2
Page 56



have not claimed. It would also be very unfair to those with incomes just above the
threshold.

1. Introduction

Age UK is a national charity that works with a network of partners, including Age Scotland,
Age Cymru, Age NI and local Age UKs across England. In the UK, the Charity helps more
than seven million older people each year by providing advice and support. It also
researches and campaigns on the issues that matter most to older people. Our work
focuses on ensuring that older people: have enough money; enjoy life and feel well;
receive high quality health and care; are comfortable, safe and secure at home; and feel
valued and able to participate.

Age UK welcomes the opportunity to respond to the consultation. Our response has been
informed by polling we have commissioned and views expressed by individuals who have
contacted us following the launch of our campaign to save the free TV licence. We have
heard from people aged 75+ about how important it is for them, from those approaching 75
who are looking forward to receiving it, from younger people concerned about the position
of their older relatives and from many other people who do not benefit directly from the
free TV licence but believe it is important that, as a society, we provide this support to
older pensioners. The quotes included in this response represent a very small selection of
comments we have received.

2. Transfer of support to the BBC

Age UK'’s starting point in this debate is that the BBC should not have agreed to take over
responsibility for free TV licences as part of new funding arrangements announced in July
2015, and the Government at the time should not have put pressure on the BBC to do so.
As set out below, we believe there are continuing strong arguments for keeping the free
licence but that it is the role of Government to provide this support for our oldest citizens -
not the BBC. It is not appropriate for a public service broadcaster to be involved in what
are, in effect, tax and benefit decisions. The BBC should not be placed in a position where
it has to decide who should receive concessions or to administer a system which could
involve disclosure of personal details such as financial information.

We are very uncomfortable that older people have been drawn into what is essentially a
debate between the Government on one hand and the BBC on the other about the future
of public service broadcasting and the ability of the BBC to continue to deliver high quality
programming. We believe this is inappropriate and unfair on older people, many of whom
view their television as not merely ‘a box in the corner of the room’ but a trusted friend and
constant companion.

3
Page 57



While the agreement was made under the previous Government, the 2017 Conservative
Party manifesto, made a commitment to retain support for the TV licence to the end of the
Parliament (which based on a five-year term will last until 2022 - after the current funding
arrangements end). Taking back responsibility for the licence (directly or through additional
funding to the BBC) is important to make sure this commitment is kept and, more
generally, to ensure that the Government maintains responsibility for this important
concession. We have also made our views known directly to the Government by writing to
the Culture Secretary Jeremy Wright.

Some of those contacting us have also made the point that funding TV licences should be
a role for the Government not the BBC.

1t is utterly wrong for the Government to have passed the responsibility for funding TV
licences for older people to the BBC and totally unacceptable for the BBC to be forced
into making such welfare decisions.’

3. Consultation and background papers

In general, Age UK has been disappointed by the process of consultation, including the
lack of public consultation around the original decision that the BBC should take over
responsibility for the concession.

The BBC commissioned Frontier Economics to carry out analysis and they produced two
papers; Concessionary TV licences and the landscape of intergenerational fairness and
Review of over-75s funding, the latter of which the BBC draws on heavily in the
consultation paper. We are concerned that these papers appear to start from the
presumption that the current concession is unfair and should be reformed. In producing
their review of funding, Frontier Economics were asked to look at the implications of
reinstating the existing concession and options for reform and, in particular, to look at
financial impact, distributional impact, feasibility and economic rationale. However, while
they have produced a detailed economic analysis, these background papers do not
consider views of older (or younger) people or look at the impact that removing the
concession could have on people’s lives.

4
Page 58



Furthermore, as we have already commented to the BBC, we question whether the
consultation will reach, and receive adequate feedback from, those who could be most
affected by changes. The questions are quite complex and the paper gives a lot of weight
to different reform options with more limited space to allow people to express their views if
they wish to retain the current concession. It is important that the BBC hears the voices of
all older people including: those who are not online (about half of those aged 75+); people
who have physical health problems or cognitive decline; and those who are less confident
at responding to formal consultations. Age UK has been working to help ensure these
people are supported to respond to the consultation but believe the BBC should also be
proactively seeking views from disadvantaged sections of the older community.

4. Why we should keep the free TV licence

In summary, we believe it is important to retain the free TV licence for people aged over 75
because many have: low disposable incomes (especially after meeting essential costs);
high levels of ill health or disability; and are particularly reliant on television for
companionship, entertainment, news and information. These inter-related issues are
considered further below.

‘I am an OAP with a very meagre pension and TV is only source of entertainment that |
have. Free TV licence has helped immensely over the past few years.’

Income and affordability

While there have been welcome improvements in the average incomes of people aged
75+ since the concession was introduced in 2000, many in this age group still live on low
or modest incomes, and worryingly in recent years pensioner poverty levels have started
to rise again.

e Nearly a fifth of people aged 75+ (18 per cent) are in poverty according to the most

commonly used definition' and
e Around three in ten (29 per cent) are in poverty, or just above the poverty line.

5
Page 59




But standards of living and disposable income are not just about the money coming in.
People aged 75+ are more likely than younger age groups to have extra demands on their
income due to health and care needs, often with limited formal care support. For example,
older people may have higher heating bills because they are at home more and have
restricted mobility, may need to pay for taxis if public transport is difficult to use (or not
available) and may have to pay for jobs such as cleaning and decorating that they can no
longer do themselves. In addition, people can face extra costs due to buying health-related
items or having to pay for care services. As a result, even those who, on paper, appear to
have reasonable incomes can be very hard pressed after meeting high levels of essential
costs. For example, one women who told us that television provided ‘a window on the
outside world’ for her disabled mother said that because her mother had an occupational
pension it was unlikely she would qualify if the concession was means-tested, even though
in practice most of this pension went on care charges.

1t was a great relief not to have to pay when reaching 75 this year as | need to save as |
am getting older & need more help with things like heating bills, food, diesel as they
continually go up & as the weather is so often bad | have to stay in on my own and TV is
company.’

The over 75s population have often been retired for many years. Many will have seen the
real value of their retirement income falling over time as private pensions are generally not
increased in line with living standards, and savings (which for many years have produced
very little investment income) are drawn on. And all in this age group will have reached
State Pension age well before the new State Pension was introduced which particularly
benefits those who have had lower lifetime earnings. The combination of incomes falling in
real terms and additional costs, can result in financial pressures. Universal benefits such
as the winter fuel payment, the bus pass (for those who have a bus service and are able to
use it) and, for the over 75s, the free TV licence, provide welcome support to a group who
have contributed much to our society over their lifetimes.

1am 76 and free TV is about the only free thing | get and it saves me just a little money
each month to go towards keeping warm.’

6
Page 60



Health and disability
Il health and disability increase with age.

e Around a half (49%) of those aged 75+ have a limiting long-standing illness" and more
than half of people aged 75+ are disabled."

e 850,000 in the UK have dementia. Incidence increases with age and one in six people
aged 80+ have dementia."

The high level of ill health and disability among those aged 75+ is important in the debate
about free TV licences because, as set out above, this often leads to higher costs.
Furthermore, health problems may limit people’s ability to get out and about, making
socialising harder and the television even more important.

1 am older disabled person | rely on my TV to keep me up to date with current affairs
and life in general and on a low income | would struggle to pay for a licence.’

‘My father has dementia and cannot drive or leave the house on his own. It is his window
to the outside world. He watches quizzes which help keep his mind active. Without TV
his quality of life would be sadly greatly reduced.’

Living alone, loneliness

The likelihood of living alone increases with age. Not everyone who lives alone is lonely,
and not every lonely person lives alone. However, someone who is living alone is more
likely to be isolated, particularly if they are older and disabled with limited mobility.

e 41% of over 75s and 49% of over 80s live alone compared to 13 per cent of all
individuals.v
e Almost 2.5 million people in the UK over 75 live alone; 57% of these are women.!

Furthermore, for people living alone the cost of the licence will have to come from a single
income. The £150.50 licence (£154.50 from April 2019) will therefore take up the best part
(92%) of one week’s income for an older person receiving the standard rate of Pension
Credit guarantee whereas many households with 2 or more adults will often have more
than one wage or other type of income coming in.

.
Page 61



In recent years we have come to realise how prevalent loneliness is in our society, and we
also know that for a sizeable minority of older people, television is see as their main
companion.

e Around a third (32%) of people aged 75+ in England say they are sometimes or
often lonely. Vi

The importance of television for older people

Any threat to the over 75s free licence is worrying as we know that television plays a very
important role in the lives of many, and a substantial minority see it as their main
companion.

e A 2016 survey found that nearly two out of five (38%) of people aged 75+ in Great
Britain agreed that television was their main form of company (these days).

e Around nine out of ten 75+ year olds watch TV every day.*

e Time spent watching TV increases with age and the profile of TV viewers is getting
older.

Television is not just a source of company and entertainment, it also provides news and
information. This is becoming more and more important to the many older people who do
not use the internet given that many public and private organisations increasingly expect
people to access their services and information online.

e Just over half (51%) of people aged 75+ (over 2.6 million) in the UK have never
used the internet.i

1 am an 83 yrs old disabled lady my TV is my companion & | could never afford the TV
licence don’t take away my only pleasure, thank you.’

1am 77 & 7 months, and a widow alone. the television is important, | get to hear and
see human faces, and also watch lovely animal programmes, and its company for me.’

8
Page 62



If over 75s have to pay for the TV licence in the future

Worryingly, more than a fifth (22%) of people aged 75+ say they would not be able to
afford the cost of the TV licence from their income, while a similar proportion (20%) say
they would have to cut back on other things such as heating, food, or socialising in order
to meet the cost. Age UK analysis also shows that having to pay an additional £150 for
the licence would, have the effect of pushing over 50,000 pensioners in the UK into
poverty.

‘As a senior citizen, every single penny counts. As we get older, we need more warmth
and it would be dreadful to have to choose between staying warm or possibly having to
give up my TV, especially as | am on my own.’

‘A TV licence represents a large proportion of my pension which may well force me to
dispense with my TV.’

‘I would be lost without my TV and could not afford the licence. It is my lifeline to the
world as | am housebound.’

There is also a question about how, in practice, the BBC will communicate any changes
and how those with limited mobility and/or who do not use the internet or online banking
will be expected to make payments. Some will have received the free licence for around
20 years and will find it difficult to understand why they must now pay and could risk follow
up action for non-payment. This could be a particular issue for those with cognitive decline
who may be able to manage their finances day-to-day but find taking on new financial
responsibilities difficult.

We are also worried that scammers will be quick to take advantage of any change that
means some, or all, 75+ households have to buy a TV licence in the future. There are
already reports of TV licence scams* and it is likely there will be new ones aimed
specifically at vulnerable people aged 75+.

9
Page 63



5. Proposals for a new concession

The consultation paper sets out three main options for new concessions which the BBC
suggests could be ‘appropriate and affordable’. As stated above, we believe the current
concession should continue and below we set out the reasons why we reject the proposed
alternatives.

Option 1: A 50% discount

The first option suggested is to continue to provide an over-75s concession but at a
reduced rate of 50%. While from Age UK'’s perspective this is clearly better than having no
concession, it still represents a considerable additional claim on an individual’s finances,
and as the analysis by Frontier Economics shows, results in a higher proportion of income
loss for lower income 75+ households than richer households. The poorest tenth of
households would lose 1.1% of their income compared to 0.2% for the richest tenth.

We also note that halving the concession does not halve the cost. Frontier Economics
estimate that in 2020-2021 it would cost 56% of the full concession — so 6% (around £24
million) would be taken up with administration and implementation — neither supporting
older people nor increasing the income of the BBC.

And, as discussed above, we believe there are considerable practical difficulties in
explaining the changes and collecting fees from older people who have been used to a
free licence, especially for those with health issues.

Option 2: Raising the age threshold to 80

The consultation paper states that raising the threshold to 80 would target those most
likely to live alone and who use the BBC most, however, the Frontier Economics paper
shows it would still affect lower income households to a greater extent. The poorest tenth
of over-75 households would lose 0.8 per cent of income on average, compared to the
richest 10 per cent who would lose 0.1 per cent of income.

A higher age would not only delay the age at which the concession starts, but would mean
that more people would not live long enough to benefit at all. Of those who reach the age
of 75, it is estimated that around a fifth of men (19%) and around one in eight women
(13%) of women will have died before the age of 80.*

10
Page 64



Disadvantaged groups are particularly likely to be affected as life expectancy varies by
socio-economic factors and where people live. For example, at age 65, men living in
Glasgow City, on average, can only expect to live a further 15 years whereas those in
Kensington and Chelsea can expect 22 more years. For women life expectation at 65
varies from 18 years (Glasgow City) to 24 years (Camden).Vi

We also know from the reaction to rises in women’s State Pension age, that people feel it
is very unfair when there are steep changes to the age at which support is provided,
especially if little notice is given. If the age for the concession goes up to 80, someone
aged 75 could feel very hard done by when they compare their position to a friend who is
80 and who has already benefited from the concession for the last five years.

Option 3: Means-test through a link to Pension Credit

The consultation paper considers a scenario where the free TV licence would only go to
households where someone aged 75+ receives Pension Credit. This would remove the
concession from the great majority of people aged 75+. According to the BBC’s Equality
Impact Assessment, just 900,000 households would receive it and 3.75 million would have
to pay.

Although the consultation paper states that this option would be ‘targeted at those with the
lowest incomes’, the analysis shows that on average the poorest tenth of over 75s would
lose 2.1% of their income. This may be because, in reality, linking the free licence to
Pension Credit would exclude those with the very lowest incomes — namely people who
are entitled to Pension Credit but have not claimed it. The latest DWP estimates of benefit
take-up indicate that two out of five people aged 75+ should be claiming but have not done
so.

e In 2016-17 over 950,000 people 75+ claimed Pension Credit (single people or
couples) in Great Britain. il

e A further 650,000 people aged 75+ were entitled to claim Pension Credit but were
not receiving it. This means that around two out of five (41%) of those aged 75+
who should be getting the benefit are missing out.*x

Oder people do not claim their entitlements for a range of inter-related reasons. They may
not know what support is available, may feel they are not entitled to any help, may be put
off by the process, or feel there is a stigma attached to asking for help.

A second major concern with linking the concession to Pension Credit entitlement is that it
creates an unfair position between those who get the benefit, and others whose income is
just above the threshold so do not. Take, for example, someone whose income is 20
pence a week too high to receive Pension Credit. They are £10 a year better off in terms of

11
Page 65



annual income but, because of this extra additional income, they would lose the TV licence
worth £150 in addition to other benefits currently linked to Pension Credit such as the £25
cold weather payment given in weeks when the weather is very cold. So overall they are in
a worse financial position than someone receiving Pension Credit. We already hear from
older people with modest amounts of private income who miss out on additional support
and feel they are penalised for having saved. This situation is likely to be exacerbated if
the free TV licence is linked to Pension Credit receipt.

‘Our total pension is just over the pension credit threshold so we don't get any extra help
and if means tested we would miss out. .......... Us old ones have paid this tax all our
lives and for many this is their only form of entertainment and company. Please don't
believe all the hype about pensioners being well off. This may be the case for some but
for many we are just getting by.’

‘My income is a tiny bit above receiving any help, so | pay for everything with a struggle
at times. This free TV licence is a welcome help.’

Thirdly, any system of means-testing involves added complexity. There would need to be
some form of check or data sharing and regular reassessment as circumstances can
change over time. This is recognised in the BBC consultation paper on age-related TV
licences which describes the implementation of providing free licences only to those
receiving Pension Credit as ‘more complex and expensive than other options’.
Furthermore, older people may not feel comfortable about sharing personal information,
such as being in receipt of a means-tested benefit, with the BBC.

6. Conclusion

Removing or limiting the concession would have a major impact on the lives of many of
our oldest citizens, particularly the most vulnerable who are living with some combination
of disability, low income and loneliness. We believe there is considerable opposition to the
change from older and younger people. The Government should take back responsibility
for funding this support, meeting its manifesto commitments, and helping to meet its stated
policy aims to combat loneliness, tackle poverty and support independence.

12
Page 66



IDWP (2018) Households below average income 1994/95-2016/17. Poverty defined as income below 60% of
median household income after housing costs.

ii As above - ‘just above the poverty line’ defined as income below 70% average median household income after
housing costs.

iii English Longitudinal Study of Ageing (ELSA), Wave 8 (2018), Age UK Analysis of LLSI variable and using ONS
2017 England, Mid-Year Estimates (Released 2018)

v DWP (2018) Family Resources Survey 2016/17, shows that 49% of those aged 75-79 and 61% of those aged
80+ are disabled.

v https://www.alzheimers.org.uk/about-us/news-and-media/facts-media

vi Frontier Economics (2018) Review of over-75s funding. Frontier Economics.
https://downloads.bbc.co.uk/mediacentre/frontier-economics-review-of-over-75s-funding.pdf

vii Understanding Society (USoc), Wave 8, 2018, Age UK Analysis based on ONS 2017, United Kingdom Mid-Year
Estimates (Released 2018)

vit Age UK calculation based on Wave 8 (2016-17) of the English Survey of Ageing (ELSA) data.

x TNS polling for Age UK, 2016.

* ONS, Mid-Year Estimates (2017), Released June 2018

xi Ofcom (2018), Media Nations Report, Accessed via:

[https://www.ofcom.org.uk/ data/assets/pdf file/0014/116006/media-nations-2018-uk.pdf]

i ONS (2018) Internet Users 2018, (Tables: 1A & 1B)
. k.org.uk/l

xiv https://www.ageuk.org.uk/latest-press/articles /2019 /january/scrapping-the-free-tv-licence-could-push-
more-than-50000-pensioners-into-poverty-warns-age-uk/
x https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-46745298

xvi

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/lifeexpectancies/dataset

s/nationallifetablesunitedkingdomreferencetables
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/healthandsocialcare/healthandlifeexpectancies/data
sets/lifeexpectancyatbirthandatage65bylocalareasuk

wiit DWP (2018). Income-related benefits: estimates of take-up: financial year 2016 to 2017.

xix DWP (2018). Income-related benefits: estimates of take-up: financial year 2016 to 2017.

13
Page 67


https://downloads.bbc.co.uk/mediacentre/frontier-economics-review-of-over-75s-funding.pdf
https://www.ofcom.org.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0014/116006/media-nations-2018-uk.pdf
https://www.ageuk.org.uk/latest-press/articles/2019/february/over-two-million-over-75s-would-have-to-go-without-tv-or-cut-back-on-essentials-such-as-heating-or-eating-if-free-tv-licences-are-scrapped/
https://www.ageuk.org.uk/latest-press/articles/2019/february/over-two-million-over-75s-would-have-to-go-without-tv-or-cut-back-on-essentials-such-as-heating-or-eating-if-free-tv-licences-are-scrapped/
https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-46745298
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/lifeexpectancies/datasets/nationallifetablesunitedkingdomreferencetables
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/lifeexpectancies/datasets/nationallifetablesunitedkingdomreferencetables

AGE UK Press release — June 2019

DECISION TO AXE FREE TV DEVASTATING FOR WELL OVER A MILLION OVER-75S
LARGELY CONFINED TO THEIR HOMES

Half of all over-75s — 2.2 million — have a limiting long-standing illness™ which means in many cases
they are largely confined to home, making TV their precious window on the world and constant
companion, according to the Charity Age UK as it continues to campaign for the continuation of free
TV licences for the over-75s.

New figures show that 1.3 million over-75s (29 per cent) have difficulty with at least one daily
activity such as dressing, bathing or showering, or getting in and out of bed. Of that number,
700,000 (15 per cent of over-75s) have difficulty with at least two daily activities and 390,000 (9 per
cent) have difficult with at least three. An additional 23,000 over-75s are bedbound. ™

The Charity is warning that these are the older people who will be among the hardest hit by the
BBC’s decision to scrap free TV licences for all over-75s. A big extra bill on top of the other challenges
and health costs that many in this group are facing will be a bitter blow and a source of huge anxiety
and some will be unable to engage with any new system.

Since its introduction in 2000, the free licence has been a highly valued, universal entitlement for the
over-75s which has helped millions to sustain their quality of life into late old age. Research for the
Charity shows that television is the main form of company for two in every five (38 per cent) people
aged 75+ and nine out of 10 in this age group watch TV every day. ™ It is particularly important for
many of the 2 million over-75s who live alone™ — many of whom may struggle to bear the additional
cost of a TV licence on a single income — and the 1.5 million over-75s who are sometimes or often
lonely.™

Following the launch of the Government’s new loneliness campaign, Let’s Talk Loneliness“", on
Monday, the Charity’s analysis is a stark reminder of the high numbers of vulnerable and lonely over-
75s for whom free TV access provides not just companionship but indispensable and, for some,
almost their only link to the outside world.

That’s why Age UK is calling on all the Conservative leadership candidates to commit to honouring
the party’s manifesto pledge to keep free TV licences for the over-75s. It argues that whilst the cost
of the entitlement accounts for less than 0.1% of public spending™”, the benefit to the over-75s is
immeasurable.

Over the past few weeks and months, Age UK has received tens of thousands of responses from
people across the country who are worried about losing their free TV licence, or concerned for
others who may be affected. Their words are a powerful reminder that, for many people, TV is so
much more than just ‘background noise’:

“In my advancing years | have to spend longer hours at home, so watching TV is not just a pastime
but a necessity. TV is my life support machine!”

“I am an OAP with a very meagre pension and TV is the only source of entertainment that | have. The
free TV licence has helped immensely over the past few years.”

Page 68



“This is the first year | have received a free TV licence, it is greatly appreciated. | don’t have my hand
out with a begging bowl and never have. My income is only a tiny bit above receiving any help, so |
pay for everything with a struggle at times. This TV licence is a welcome help.”

“My husband is 85, | am 80. We rely on our TV for our main contact with the outside world. We both
have chronic, limiting health problems.”

The Charity is extremely concerned about the BBC’s plan to link free TV licences to Pension Credit, a
state benefit for the poorest pensioners, as many are missing out on the benefit or are just over the
limit so would lose their free licence and would struggle to afford to buy one. Over 40 per cent of
those entitled to Pension Credit aren’t receiving it,"" often because they don’t know they are
eligible, find the claiming process too complicated or intrusive, or feel embarrassed about needing
help. But even those who are in receipt of Pension Credit may be reluctant to tell an ‘outside body’,
the BBC, and some will undoubtedly struggle to ‘self-validate’ that they are in receipt of Pension
Credit because they are living with some loss of cognitive function or chronic illness.

Caroline Abrahams, Charity Director at Age UK said: “If you go into the home of an older person

who is coping with serious health problems and care needs, nine times out of ten their TV has pride of
place. For this significant group of over-75s getting out and about is hard or impossible and many live
alone and spend most or all of the day on their own. In these circumstances the TV plays an incredibly
important role — informer, entertainer and friend. This is what many thousands of older people have
contacted Age UK to say — it is clear that the TV means a lot more to greater numbers of older people
than the Government or the BBC have understood.

“In this of all weeks, ‘Loneliness Awareness week’, we are calling on our policymakers, the candidates
for the leadership of the Conservative Party above all, to try to understand what it is like to be of an
advanced age, in fragile or declining health, confined largely to your own home or even to one room
or your bed, and dependent on your TV for stimulation and comfort. This is the reality for hundreds of
thousands and | don’t think it is unreasonable for the State to pay so that they can at least watch the
TV for free, without the hassle and expense of buying a licence or having to self-validate their
entitlement to Pension Credit to get a free licence.

“For less than 0.1% of total public spending the new Prime Minister, whoever they may be, can end
this madness at the stroke of a pen. We call on him to commit to continuing to fund free TV licences
for all over-75s until 2022 when the issue can be looked at in the round as part of the next BBC
funding settlement, or earlier as part of a comprehensive spending review if we get one before then.”

-Ends-
Notes to editors

e To date, more than 570,000 people of all ages have signed Age UK’s petition™ to save free TV
licences for the over-75s, showing mounting support for the continuation of this important
social welfare policy. Check here for the latest figure: www.ageuk.org.uk/tvpetition

e Through its Switched Off campaign, Age UK is calling on all leadership candidates of the
Conservative Party to take back responsibility for the funding of free TV licences for the over-75s
if they become Prime Minister. The Charity is also urging older people, their friends, neighbours,
families and grandchildren to support its petition on social media using #SwitchedOff.

e Savethe TV Licence demos, organised by the National Pensioners’ Convention (NPC), are taking
place nationwide this Friday, 21° June. The NPC is calling on local pensioner groups, trade
unions, community groups, students, members of the public, MPs and councillors to make a

Page 69



stand on Friday 21 June against 1) the BBC’s decision to means-test the TV licence for older
people and 2) the Government’s decision to make the BBC pay for the concession. For further
information please visit: https://www.npcuk.org/events.

e Anyolder person who is worried about money and/or think they may be entitled to claim
Pension Credit should contact Age UK by calling its national advice line free of charge on 0800
169 65 65, visiting www.ageuk.org.uk/money or contact their local Age UK for free information
and advice.

t Age UK analysis of wave 8 of the English Longitudinal Study of Ageing (ELSA), collected in 2016-17 and
released in 2018. Estimates have been scaled up to the England 75+ population using Office for National
Statistics mid-year population estimates for 2017, released in June 2018.

™ |bid

U TNS polling for Age UK, 2016.

v Age UK analysis of wave 8 of Understanding Society, the UK Household Longitudinal Study, collected in
2016-17 and released in 2018. Analysis was restricted to participants living in England and aged 75+. Estimates
have been scaled up to the England 75+ population using Office for National Statistics mid-year population
estimates for 2017, released in June 2018.

o Age UK analysis of wave 8 of the English Longitudinal Study of Ageing (ELSA), collected in 2016-17 and
released in 2018. Estimates have been scaled up to the England 75+ population using Office for National
Statistics mid-year population estimates for 2017, released in June 2018.

M https://www.gov.uk/government/news/lets-talk-loneliness-campaign-launched-to-tackle-stigma-of-feeling-
alone

tvi Age UK calculation based on table 4.12 - https://obr.uk/download/march-2019-economic-and-fiscal-

outlook-charts-and-tables-fiscal/

Vil ' hcome related benefits: estimates of take-up: financial year 2016 to 2017', DWP, published 15th Nov
2018. https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/income-related-benefits-estimates-of-take-up-financial-
year-2016-to-2017

i Age UK launched it Switched Off campaign petition in January 2019. www.ageuk.org.uk/tvpetition

Page 70



Agenda Item 9

. Report to Healthier Communities and
Sheftield Adult Social Care Scrutiny and Policy
Development Committee
Wednesday 24" July 2019

City Council

Report of: Policy and Improvement Officer

Subject: Draft Work Programme 2019/20

Author of Report: Emily Standbrook-Shaw, Policy and Improvement Officer
Emily.Standbrook-Shaw@sheffield.gov.uk
0114 273 5065

The attached report aims to assist the Healthier Communities and Adult Social
Care Scrutiny Committee to develop its work programme for 2019/20.

It covers the role and purpose of scrutiny, an overview of how the draft work
programme has been drawn up to date, and a draft work programme for the
Committee’s consideration and discussion.

Type of item: The report author should tick the appropriate box

Reviewing of existing policy

Informing the development of new policy
Statutory consultation

Performance / budget monitoring report
Cabinet request for scrutiny

Full Council request for scrutiny

Call-in of Cabinet decision

Briefing paper for the Scrutiny Committee
Other X

The Scrutiny Committee is being asked to:
e Consider and comment on the draft work programme for 2019/20

e Consider whether it wishes to establish, and appoint members to, a task
and finish group looking at continence services.

Category of Report: OPEN

Page 71


mailto:Emily.Standbrook-Shaw@sheffield.gov.uk

Page 72



11

1.2

13

2.1

2.2

What is the role of Scrutiny?

Scrutiny Committees exist to hold decision makers to account,
investigate issues of local concern, and make recommendations for
improvement. The Centre for Public Scrutiny has identified that effective
scrutiny:

e Provides ‘Critical Friend’ challenge to executive policy makers and
decision makers

e Enables the voice and concern of the public and its communities

e |s carried out by independent minded governors who lead and own
the scrutiny process

¢ Drives improvement in public services and finds efficiencies and
new ways of delivering services

Scrutiny Committees can operate in a number of ways — through formal
meetings with several agenda items, single item ‘select committee’ style
meetings, task and finish groups, and informal visits and meetings to
gather evidence to inform scrutiny work. Committees can hear from
Council Officers, Cabinet Members, partner organisations, expert
witnesses, members of the public — and has a link to patient and public
voice through observer members from HealthWatch sitting on the
Committee. Scrutiny Committees are not decision making bodies, but
can make recommendations to decision makers.

This Committee has additional powers and responsibilities in relation to
scrutinising NHS services. The Committee can scrutinise the planning,
provision and operation of any NHS services, and where a ‘substantial
variation’ to NHS services is planned, the NHS is required to discuss this
with the Scrutiny Committee. If the Committee considers that the
proposed change is not in the best interests of the local area, or that
consultation on the proposal has been inadequate, it can refer the
proposal to the Secretary of State for Health for reconsideration.
Department for Health Guidance for health scrutiny can be found here —
and has already been circulated to Members of the Committee.

Developing the Scrutiny Work Programme

Attached to this report is a draft work programme for 2019/20. The Chair
has had discussions with a range of organisations, Council Officers and
Cabinet Members to come up with a draft programme. There are also
some issues carried over from last year’s work programme.

It is important the work programme reflects the principles of effective
scrutiny, outlined above at 1.1, and so the Committee has a vital role in
ensuring that the work programme is looking at issues that concern local
people, and looking at issues where scrutiny can influence decision
makers. The work programme remains a live document, and there will
be an opportunity for the Committee to discuss it at every Committee
meeting, this might include:

Page 73


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/advice-to-local-authorities-on-scrutinising-health-services

3.1

3.2

e Prioritising issues for inclusion on a meeting agenda

¢ |dentifying new issues for scrutiny

e Determining the appropriate approach for an issue — eg select
committee style single item agenda vs task and finish group

¢ ldentifying appropriate witnesses and sources of evidence to
inform scrutiny discussions

¢ |dentifying key lines of enquiry and specific issues that should be
addressed through scrutiny of any given issue.

Members of the Committee can also raise any issues relating to the work
programme via the Chair or Policy and Improvement Officer at any time.
The Draft Scrutiny Work Programme 2019/20

Attached is the draft work programme for 2019/20. Members are asked
to consider it and reflect on questions such as:-

e Are there any gaps?

e What are the priority issues?

e What approach should the Committee take for each item, what
are the key lines of enquiry, and who is it important to hear from?

Proposed Task and Finish Group — Continence Services

The Chair has identified a possible issue for a task and finish group —
looking at continence services in Sheffield, considering how well current
services help people to maintain their independence and dignity, and the
impact of purchasing exclusions on continence pads. If the Committee
wishes to include this on its work programme for 2019/20 it will need to
appoint members to take part.

Recommendations

The Committee is asked to:

e Consider and comment on the draft work programme for 2019/20

e Consider whether it wishes to establish, and appoint members to,
a task and finish group looking at continence services

Page 74



G, abed

HC&ASC Draft Work Programme

Topic

Reasons for selecting topic

Lead Officer/s

Wednesday 24th July 2019 4pm

NHS Sheffield CCG Improvement Plan

In March 2019, an independent review of culture
and leadership in NHS Sheffield CCG was published.
The CCG have developed an improvement plan to
address the issues identified. The improvement plan
is brought to the Committee for scrutiny.

Brian Hughes, Deputy Accountable
Officer, NHS Sheffield CCG

Changes to eligibility for free BBC TV
licenses for over 75's

To consider the impact of changes to eligibility for
free TV licenses in Sheffield and possible
mitigations.

Work Programme Report

Committee to consider its work programme for
2019/20, including any appointments to working
groups.

Emily Standbrook-Shaw, Policy &
Improvement Officer.

Wed 11th September 2019 4pm
Mental Health

Mental Health Transformation
Programme

To understand the impact that the mental health
transformation programme is having on people in
Sheffield, and to understand the commissioning and
finance arrangements behind the programme.

Jim Millns, Deputy Director of Mental
Health Transformation and Integration,
NHS Sheffield CCG, Sam Martin, SCC




9, abed

Dementia Update

To consider the City's dementia strategy and the
impact it is having on people living with dementia
and their families and progress in implementing
Dementia Friendly Communities in Sheffield.

Nicola Shearstone, SCC
NHS Sheffield CCG

Wed 16th October 2019 4pm
Transformation and Integration

Joint Commissioning Update

To consider progress in developing Joint
Commissioning arrangements and the impact of
Joint Commissioning

Greg Fell, John Doyle SCC, Brian Hughes,
CCG

Accountable Care Partnership

To consider the impact of the Accountable Care
Partnership - what it has done, the difference it has
made to people and services in Sheffield, and future
plans, including the implementation of ‘Shaping
Sheffield’.

Kathryn Robertshaw, Interim ACP
Director

Better Care Fund To consider how well the Better Care Fund is driving | SCC/CCG
integrated services in Sheffield, what impact is it
having, and future plans

Wed 27th November 2019 4pm

Improving people’s experience of care

CQC Local System Review Action Plan — Delayed Transfers of Care have been a persistent STH/SCC/CCG

focus on Delayed Transfers of Care and
Winter Readiness

performance issue in Sheffield, and was a key focus
of the CQC Local System Review. To understand how
the system is preparing for winter 2019/20, and




/] abed

progress on the Local System Review Action Plan —
including case studies to demonstrate how people’s
experience of the system has improved since the
review took place.

Continuing HealthCare

To consider whether developments to the CHC
process are having the right impact and improving
performance and patient experience.

Mandy Philbin, NHS Sheffield CCG
Sara Storey, SCC

Wed 15th January 2020 4pm
Locality Working

Working together in Localities

To consider how well services are coming together
in areas, including the development of Primary Care
Networks, Adult Social Care Locality Teams, People
Keeping Well Programme, Social Prescribing and
relationship with the voluntary sector.

Wed 18th March 2020 4pm
Performance

Quality in Adult Social Care

To scrutinise performance against national adult
social care indicators, and impact of actions taken to
improve quality in social care. To include the draft
Local Account.

Sara Storey, SCC

Proposed Task and Finish Group

Continence Services

To consider how well current services help people to
maintain their independence and dignity, and the
impact of purchasing exclusions on continence pads.




g,) abed

‘Watching Brief’ items

Urgent Care Review

To consider proposals for changing the way urgent
care services are delivered in the City

Brian Hughes & Kate Gleave NHS
Sheffield CCG

Social Care Green Paper

To consider the implications of the Social Care Green
Paper for Sheffield.

Sara Storey, SCC

Impact of Brexit on the Health and Care
Sector

To consider implications of Brexit on the Health and
Care Sector in Sheffield — particularly relating to
workforce

Director of Public Health, SCC

Quality Accounts To consider NHS provider Trusts Quality Accounts in | Various
line with Statutory Guidance — approach to be
determined.
Adult Short Breaks To consider whether proposals to change Adult Short | NHS Sheffield CCG
Breaks require public consultation and scrutiny.
Implementation of the national GP To consider the local commissioning response to the | NHS Sheffield CCG
contract national changes to GP contracts.
Primary Care Hubs To consider proposals around changing locations of | NHS Sheffield CCG

Primary Care Hubs in the City.

Bereavement post suicide

To consider proposals to strengthen bereavement
services following suicide

Director of Public Health, SCC

Suicide Strategy

The City’s Suicide Strategy is due to be reviewed in
2020.

Director of Public Health, SCC

Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Strategy

To consider implementation and impact of the
Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Strategy

Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Board




Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	15 May (First Minutes)

	7 NHS Sheffield CCG: Improvement Plan
	8 Age Related TV Licence Policy
	BBC TV Licence
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	9 Work Programme 2019/20

